
 

 AGENDA 

 

CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: 02/02/2016 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission less 

than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at the Community Development Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, First Floor, Rocklin, during normal business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the Planning 

Commission meeting in the public access binder located at the back table in the Council Chambers. 

 

CITIZENS ADDRESSING THE COMMISSION 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  An opportunity will be provided for citizens wishing to speak on non-agenda items to 

similarly request recognition and address the Planning Commission. Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on 

citizen comments. 

 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

ACCOMMODATING THOSE INDIVIDUALS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

Packet Pg. 1



Agenda of 02/02/2016 

Page 2 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. Meeting called to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

 

a. December 15, 2016 

 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

CONSENT ITEMS - None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. APPEAL OF FREESTANDING SIGN APPROVAL     Continued from November 3, 2015 

FOR ROCKLIN DEL RIO SELF STORAGE 

 

The Yankee Hill Estates Homeowners’ Association has submitted an appeal to the administrative approval of the 

sign permit for the construction of the new freestanding sign at the northwest corner of Pacific Street and 

Americana Way for Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage. 

 

8. VERIZON WIRELESS @ PACIFIC STREET       Continued from December 15, 2015 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0014 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2014-0008 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit for a new wireless 

telecommunications facility including 12 panel antennas and associated equipment mounted on a 75-foot tall 

simulated water tower and tank and a back-up emergency diesel generator.  The subject property is located at 

4335 Pacific Street, APN: 045-021-009.  The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (M-2).  The General Plan 

designation is Heavy Industrial (HI). 

 

A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303 

New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the 

appropriate level of environmental review for this project.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated 

under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 

 

The applicant is Sacramento Valley Limited Partnership DBA Verizon Wireless. The property owner is Road Safety, 

Inc. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Verizon 

Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 

 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Conditional Use Permit to Allow 

the Operation of a Wireless Telecommunications Facility (Verizon Wireless On Pacific Street / U2014-0008) 

 

c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review to Install a Wireless 

Telecommunications Facility (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014) 

Packet Pg. 2



Agenda of 02/02/2016 

Page 3 

 

 

9. CENTER AT SECRET RAVINE TIME EXTENSION 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL-2016-0001 

 

This application is a request for approval of a one-year extension of time for the previously approved project: 

 

Center at Secret Ravine (DL-2009-03) – A tentative parcel map to allow the subdivision of 4.986 ± acres into 4 

lots. 

 

The proposed project site is generally located on the east side of Sierra College Boulevard, approximately 700 

feet south of intersection/interchange of Sierra College Boulevard and Interstate 80, in the City of Rocklin. The 

Assessor’s Parcel Number is 045-053-067. 

 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council 

through Resolution No. 2011-144. 

 

The property owner and applicant is Rocklin Holdings, LP. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a One-Year Extension of a Tentative 

Parcel Map (Center at Secret Ravine Time Extension / Dl2016-0001) 

 

10. ROCKLIN PARK SENIOR LIVING TIME EXTENSION 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U-2016-0001 

 

This application is a request for approval of a one-year time extension of a Conditional Use Permit (U-2013-03) to 

convert the existing Rocklin Park Hotel and operate a senior living facility, including independent and assisted 

living in a Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) zone. 

 

The subject property is located at 5450 China Garden Road, approximately 0.35 miles from the intersection of 

Aguilar Road and China Garden Road. APN 045-110-067. 

 

The project was previously found to be categorically exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) Guidelines through resolution PC-2013-64. 

 

The property owner and the applicant is Omkar Rocklin, Inc. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a One-Year Time Extension of a 

Conditional Use Permit to Allow the Conversion of the Rocklin Park Hotel Into and For the Operation of a 

Senior Living Facility in a PD-C Zone (Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension / U2016-0001) 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

11. Informational Items and Presentations 

 

a. Final Landscape Templates 

 

12. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

13. Reports from City Staff 

14. Adjournment 

 

 

Packet Pg. 3



City of Rocklin  Page 1 
Planning Commission Minutes  December 15, 2015  

CITY OF ROCKLIN  
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
December 15, 2015 

Rocklin Council Chambers 
Rocklin Administration Building 

3970 Rocklin Road 
(www. rocklin.ca.us) 

 

 
1. Meeting Called to Order at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Whitmore.   
3. Roll Call  
 
 Commissioner Martinez  

Commissioner Broadway, Vice Chairman - Excused 
Commissioner Sloan 

 Commissioner McKenzie, Chairman – Excused 
 Commissioner Whitmore   
 
 Others Present: 
 

DeeAnne Gillick, Deputy City Attorney 
Ben Fu, Planning Services Manager 
Marc Mondell, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Laura Webster, Director of Long Range Planning 
Dara Dungworth, Associate Planner 
Dave Palmer, City Engineer 
David Mohlenbrok, Mgr. Environmental Services 
Jeffrey Tsumura, Assistant Planner 

 Terry Stemple, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 About 6 others 
 
4. Minutes –  Minutes of November 17, 2015 were approved as submitted   
5. Correspondence  - One blue memo regarding Verizon @ Pacific 
6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items - None 
 
CONSENT ITEMS – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7. THIS ITEM IS BEING RESCHEDULED TO JANUARY 19, 2016 
 AND THE VENUE WILL BE RELOCATED TO THE ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER 

 NORTHERN CALIFORNIA BEHAVIORAL HOSPITAL 
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2015-0011 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2015-0002 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2015-0004 
VARIANCE, V2015-0014 

Packet Pg. 4

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 2 
Planning Commission Minutes  December 15, 2015  

 This application is a request for approval of a Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, Conditional Use Permit, 
and Variance to allow the construction of a 58,000 SF behavior health hospital and a 6,400 SF medical office 
building.  The subject site is generally located on the Northern side of West Ranch View Drive and University 
Ave, APN: 491-010-003 through 491-010-010. The property is zoned Planned Development Business 
Professional (PD-BP).  The General Plan designation is Business Professional. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the development project described above. The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 
65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 
 
The applicant is Universal Health Services, Inc.  The property owner is Orchard Creek Investors, LLC. 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration of Environmental Impacts (Northern California Behavioral Hospital / DR2015-0011, 
DL2015-0002, U2015-0004, V2015-0004) 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City Of Rocklin Approving a Conditional Use Permit 
(Northern California Behavioral Hospital / U2015-0004) 

c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Variance (Northern 
California Behavioral Hospital / V2015-0014) 

d. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review (Northern 
California  Behavioral Hospital / DR2015-0011) 

e. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Tentative Parcel Map 
(Northern California Behavioral Hospital / DL2015-0002) 

 
8. CONTINUED FROM OCTOBER 20, 2015 

 
RACETRACK SUBDIVISION 
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, SD2014-0006 
OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT, TRE2015-0005 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map to subdivide an approximately 3.77 
acre parcel into ten (10) residential lots and an Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit to allow the removal of oak 
trees.  The subject property is generally located on the eastern leg of Racetrack Road at Sucker Ravine Creek.  
APN 045-090-003 and -004. The property is zoned Residential Single Family 6,000 square feet minimum lot 
size (R1-6).  The General Plan designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
the development project described above. The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 
65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 
 
The applicant is Ron Smith.  The property owners are Equity Smart Investments LP, and Joseph and Marsha 
Conwill. 

 
Dara Dungworth presented the staff report.  
 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 3 
Planning Commission Minutes  December 15, 2015  

1. Width of road at first hearing 
2. Width of road at present proposal 
3. Type of All Weather surface 
4. Maintenance responsibility for turn out area 
5. Public or private road 

 
Applicant, Ron Smith, addressed the Commission.  
 
The Commission had questions for the applicant regarding: 
 

1. Location of speed bumps 
 

Additional questions for staff: 
 

1. Speed bumps not in conditions of approval 
2. Are speed bumps allowed on public streets 
3. Is location of stop sign supported by City staff 

 
The hearing was opened to the public for their comments. 
 

1. Diane Hudson, Rocklin, asked how the current residents are supposed to handle traffic issues 
2. Kurt Trombino, Rocklin, expressed concerns about how close the road will come to the current property 

fencing. 
3. Andre, Rocklin, expressed his concerns with the entrance width. 

 
There being no further comments, the hearing was closed.  
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner Whitmore stated that he struggles with the new proposal and feels nothing has changed.  He needs 
to see what the street will look like in order to support the project. 
 
Commissioner Sloan stated he is content with the Traffic Safety Committee’s recommendation. He can support 
the project. 
 
Commissioner Martinez agrees with both of his fellow commissioners comments.  He is okay with the Traffic 
Safety Committee recommendation. He would like to see clearer exhibits, but can support the project. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Sloan and seconded by Commissioner Martinez, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental 
Impacts (Racetrack Subdivision / SD2014-0006 And TRE2015-0005) was approved by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Sloan, Martinez 
NOES:  Whitmore 
ABSENT: Broadway, McKenzie 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Sloan and seconded by Commissioner Martinez, Resolution of the Planning 
Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree 

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 4 
Planning Commission Minutes  December 15, 2015  

Preservation Permit (Racetrack Subdivision / SD2014-0006 And TRE2015-0005)was approved by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Sloan, Martinez 
NOES:  Whitmore 
ABSENT: Broadway, McKenzie 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 

9. VERIZON WIRELESS @ PACIFIC STREET 
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0014 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2014-0008 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit for a new wireless 
telecommunications facility including 12 panel antennas and associated equipment mounted on a 75-foot 
tall simulated water tower and tank and a back-up emergency diesel generator.  The subject property is 
located at 4335 Pacific Street, APN: 045-021-009.  The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (M-2).  The General 
Plan designation is Heavy Industrial (HI). 
 
A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 
15303 New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption 
as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project.  The project site is not on any of the lists 
enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 
 
The applicant is Sacramento Valley Limited Partnership DBA Verizon Wireless. The property owner is Road 
Safety, Inc. 

 
Dara Dungworth presented the staff report.  
 
The Commission had questions for staff regarding: 
 

1. Reason for recommending a 50’ tower when the applicant wants a 75’ tower. 
2. Where are 50’ homes 

 
Applicant, Michelle Ellis, Verizon Wireless, addressed the Commission and gave a presentation on the location and 
design of the tower.  
 
The Commission had questions for the applicant regarding: 
 

1. Surrounding building heights 
2. More shorter facilities vs. one taller tower 
3. Peaked roof 

 
The hearing was opened to the public for their comments. There being none the hearing was closed.  
 
Commission Deliberation/Discussion: 
 
Commissioner Sloan likes the architectural look of the water tower.  Would like to see what it would look like @ 
50 feet. 
 

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #4.a.



City of Rocklin  Page 5 
Planning Commission Minutes  December 15, 2015  

Commissioner Whitmore would like to see both height variations and also the peaked roof simulation. He also 
would like to see the location of the City logo on the water tower. 
 
Commissioner Martinez agreed with his fellow commissioners and would like to see the project brought back at 
another date. 
 
Michelle Ellis stated the site will not work with a tower lower than 75’. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Sloan and seconded by Commissioner Whitmore, Item #9 (Verizon Wireless on 
Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) was continued to February 2, 2016 to provide findings to support a 
tower over 50’ along with revised photo sims by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Sloan, Whitmore, Martinez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Broadway, McKenzie 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 
NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

10. Informational Items and Presentations 

a. Design Guidelines Committee Utah Study Session Report - Marc Mondell reported on the Study 
Session in Utah  

11. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners - None 

12. Reports from City Staff 

a. December 8, 2015 City Council Action on: 
Whitney Ranch Phase 2J 

13. Adjournment 

 

There being no further business brought before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 7:51 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Terry Stemple 

 Assistant City Clerk 
 

Approved at the regularly scheduled 
Meeting of  , 2015 
 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #4.a.



 
 

City of Rocklin Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Appeal of Freestanding Sign Approval 
For Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage 

 
February 2, 2016 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
 
In March 2015, Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage approached the City about the potential of 
installing off-site freestanding signage. Due to the location of the business, the storage facility 
is difficult to identify and access (Attachment 1).  Access to Rocklin Del Rio can occur through 
two main routes, from Pacific Street and Americana Way, and Pacific Street and Delmar 
Avenue.  The City of Rocklin Sign Ordinance as published in the Rocklin Municipal Code (RMC) 
Chapter 17.75 requires off-site signs to be within 500 feet of the business. The corner of Pacific 
and Delmar is approximately 950 feet so the only compliant location was the corner of Pacific 
and Americana, which is approximately 350 feet.  
 
After receiving property owner and landlord approvals (Attachment 2) and the other necessary 
documents, De Mink Designs on behalf of Rocklin Del Rio, submitted for a freestanding sign 
application on June 11, 2015 (Attachment 3) which was found to be compliant and approved 
over the counter.  Construction of the sign (see photos, Attachment 1) was completed on or 
about July 11, 2015.  The sign complies with the City visibility requirement (Attachment 4). 
 
The Yankee Hill Estates Home Owners Association subsequently filed an appeal of the staff 
approval of the sign on July 21, 2015 and submitted information to supplement the appeal on 
August 6, 2015 (Attachment 5).  On August 18, 2015, the Planning Commission heard the 
appeal and continued the item to October 6, 2015 to allow the applicant to explore an 
alternate location that may be acceptable to the appellants.  Subsequently, the applicant 
requested another continuance for an additional four weeks to November 3, 2015 and the 
appellants agreed.  At the November 3, 2015 hearing, after hearing testimonies from the public 
and the applicant on the potential alternate sites, the Planning Commission continued the item 
to January 19, 2016 to allow the applicant sufficient time to explore and negotiate with owners 
of the alternate sites.  The item was continued again from January 19, 2016 to February 2, 
2016 to accommodate the hearing and calendar schedule.      
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Freestanding Sign Approval For Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage 
February 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 
Appeal 
Appeal rights in this circumstance are governed by Rocklin Municipal Code Sec. 17.86.010., 
which states “Any person dissatisfied by an act or determination of an official of the city 
relating to the enforcement or interpretation of this title may appeal such act or determination 
to the planning commission as provided in this chapter.” 
 
As noted, the Yankee Hill Estates Homeowners’ Association submitted an appeal letter and 
additional supporting documentation (Attachment 5) of the administrative approval of the sign 
permit that allowed for the construction of the existing freestanding sign at the northwest 
corner of Pacific Street and Americana Way.  The appeal stated concerns that the approval was 
issued in error because it is located within landscape and public utility easements.  The appeal 
further states that the easements create a public right-of-way and signs or any other 
construction are prohibited from being located in the public right-of-way per RMC Sections 
17.75.020 and 15.28.100. 
 
RMC Requirements 
 
• Section 17.75.030B and Resolution No. 2014-65 Section 2ii. (Attachment 6) gives staff the 

authority to approve permanent building, monument and freestanding signs (other than 
freeway oriented signs) that conform to the provisions of the Sign Ordinance, Citywide 
Design Criteria, any subsequent design criteria adopted by the City and/or the adopted Sign 
Program applicable to a specific development project. 

• Section 17.75.030I requires property owner consent. 
• Section 17.75.040B discusses placement of signs.   
• Section 17.75.050 allows developed commercial, business professional and industrial 

businesses to have one 15-foot tall freestanding sign and the remaining signs at 6 feet tall. 
The business may have one sign per 200 linear feet of street frontage. The sign area cannot 
exceed 100 square feet.  

• Section 17.75.060C discusses freestanding sign standards, such as minimum sign separation 
of 75 feet and minimum three-foot setback from the public right-of-way. 

• Section 17.75.040B restricts an off-site sign to within 500 feet of the property on which the 
business product, service, or other commercial activity which is being advertised is located.  
Whenever an off-site sign is placed on another property, the off-site sign shall be deducted 
from the number and area of signs allowed on the property where the off-site sign is 
located.  

 
Property owner consent, a letter of acknowledgment that the sign would limit the existing 
tenant’s allowable signage and a lease agreement were received and reviewed by staff prior to 
approval.  Therefore, staff made the determination that the proposed sign is in compliance 
with all applicable regulations and requirements.  
 
For purposes of implementing the sign ordinance, staff has interpreted the definition of public 
right-of-way to mean areas and facilities associated with public streets, including but not 
limited to, travel lanes, medians, bike/pedestrian facilities, benches, walls (depending on 

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Freestanding Sign Approval For Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage 
February 2, 2016 
Page 3 
 
location), street lights and other similar amenities that are commonly located within the public 
streetscape. In this context, public right-of-way has also been interpreted to include landscape 
areas that are either within a dedicated street right-of-way or in separate parcels that are 
adjacent to public streets where such landscape parcels are both owned and maintained by the 
City for streetscape purposes. Staff’s interpretations regarding the general prohibition of either 
temporary or permanent commercial signs within the public right-of-way has not included 
public utility easements. 
 
Alternate Location 
 
A number of viable locations were identified by staff and communicated to the applicant.  
Unfortunately, the applicant has determined many are not feasible for operational purposes or 
do not accomplish the level of desired visibility. 
 
The applicant has proposed two alternate locations (Attachment 7).  Location 1 is at Dawson 
Oil and Carwash with a temporary freestanding banner (see mockup, Attachment 7).  This 
proposal does not meet the following requirements of the Rocklin Municipal Code Section 
17.75.070F:   

1. A temporary banner sign is only permitted on the same site as the advertised business; 
2. A temporary sign requires a Special Advertising Permit up to three times per calendar 

year, each time up to 20 consecutive days;  
3. No more than one such banner sign may be erected per establishment at any one time; 
4. A banner sign shall not be freestanding and shall be affixed to the face of a building or 

permanent freestanding sign;  
5. Exceeding 500-ft distance requirement. 

 
Location 2 is at Meek’s Lumber and Hardware at 4243 Dominguez Road with a permanent sign 
attached to the existing nonconforming freestanding sign (see mockup, Attachment 7).  The 
new freestanding sign would create a base, which would change the existing sign type from 
pole to monument; therefore, making the sign more conforming to code requirements. In 
order for the Planning Commission to approve this location, exceptions would have to be made 
for the following Rocklin Municipal Code requirements.  

1. The existing sign is located within the public right-of-way and not set back a minimum 
of three feet (RMC 17.75.060 C);  

2. Exceeding 500-ft distance requirement. 
 
RMC Section 17.75.030K states when approved by the approving authority, sign programs for 
specific developments may modify the rules stated as to sign size, height, illumination, spacing, 
orientation, or other non-communicative aspects of signs. 
 
Subject to the approval of the property owner and the submittal and approval of a sign permit, 
staff supports a sign at alternate location 2 in that: 

1. It would eliminate potential additional attention and/or traffic through a residential 
neighborhood; 

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Appeal of Freestanding Sign Approval For Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage 
February 2, 2016 
Page 4 
 

2. It addresses concerns from the neighborhood;  
3. Rocklin Del Rio still receives the visible signage that the business requires; 

 
Subject to the approval of the property owner and the submittal and approval of a sign permit, 
staff supports alternate location 2, provided that the existing Rocklin Del Rio sign is removed 
prior installation at the new location.  
 
Recommendation 
The proposed sign complies with applicable RMC sections and design guidelines.  Therefore, it 
is staff’s recommendation that the Planning Commission: 
 

1. Deny the appeal; and  
2. Make a finding that it is appropriate to grant exceedance of the distance requirement, 

sign location and setback as stated in the Sign Ordinance and RMC and approve the 
relocation of the sign contingent upon the removal of existing Rocklin Del Rio sign.    

 
Attachments: 
1. Aerials and Photographs of Existing Sign 
2. Leases 
3. Sign application 
4. Sign visibility requirement and measurement 
5. Appeal letter and Supplemental Information 
6. City Council Resolution and Approval for Storage Facility  
7. Alternative Signs & Locations 
 

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #7.



 Exhibit 1: Aerials and Photographs of Signage 

 

Del Rio Self Storage 

Location of Sign 

Parkland South 66-unit 
Residential Development 
under construction 

Parkland North 76-unit 
Approved Residential 
Development  

P
acket P

g. 1
3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 

Location of Sign 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 

P
acket P

g. 1
5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 P
acket P

g. 1
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



Attachment 3

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #7.



Attachment 2

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 26

Agenda Item #7.



Attachment 4

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 32

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 33

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 34

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 35

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 36

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 37

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 38

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 39

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 44

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 54

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 56

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 57

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 58

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 59

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 60

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 61

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #7.



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-65 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN DEFINING MAJOR AND 

MINOR SIGNS FOR PURPOSES OF IMPLEMENTING ORDINANCE 1006 (THE SIGN 

ORDINANCE, CHAPTER 17.75 OF TITLE 17, ZONING) AND DESIGNATING THE APPROVAL 

AUTHORITY FOR MURALS WITHIN THE CITY  

City of Rocklin 2014 Sign Ordinance Amendment Implementation

The City Council of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 

Section 1. A Notice of Exemption was approved at the time Ordinance 1006 

was adopted via City Council Resolution No. 2014-8 and that document 

adequately addresses these subsequent activities. 

Section 2. The City Council of the City of Rocklin finds and determines that: 

A. Ordinance 1006 (The Sign Ordinance, Chapter 17.75 of Title 17, 

Zoning) directed the City Council to adopt a list of Major and Minor Signs for 

purposes of administering the design aspects of various sign types within the 

City. The City Council is hereby identifying those signs as shown below: 

1) Major Signs are hereby defined as:

i. Freestanding Freeway oriented signs along or visible from

Highway 80 and State Route 65.

ii. Sign Programs associated with a new Shopping Center or Multi-

Building Office Complex.

iii. Permanent building or freestanding signs where design exceptions

are requested relative to numerical standards in the Sign

Ordinance and/or the design itself does not conform to the

general standards presented in the Citywide Design Criteria,  any

subsequent design criteria adopted by the City and/or adopted

Sign Program applicable to a specific development project but

exhibits exceptional design qualities.

iv. Projecting signs located over the public right-of-way and/or

private property visible from the public right-of-way and

extending beyond 24 inches from the building face.

v. Wayfinding Programs associated with private development

projects.

Attachment 6

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #7.



Page 2 

Reso. No. 2014-65 

 

2)  Minor Signs are hereby defined as: 

 

i. Awning signs. 

 

ii. Permanent building, monument and freestanding signs (other 

than Freestanding Freeway oriented signs) that conform to the 

provisions of the Sign Ordinance, Citywide Design Criteria, any 

subsequent design criteria adopted by the City and/or the 

adopted Sign Program applicable to a specific development 

project. 

 

iii. Projecting signs located over the public right-of-way and/or 

private property visible from the public right-of-way and 

extending up to 24 inches from the building face. 

 

iv.  Special Advertising Devices as defined in the Sign Ordinance. 

 

v. Subdivision entry signs if not previously processed with the 

subdivision entitlement. 

 

vi. Suspended signs over covered walkways. 

 

vii. Temporary Signs requiring a permit and as defined in the Sign 

Ordinance. 

  

B. Section 17.75.060(E) of Ordinance 1006 identifies the potential 

for murals to be established on private buildings in the commercial, industrial 

and mixed use zones in the City. The City Council hereby designates the Rocklin 

Parks, Recreation and Arts Commission as the appropriate approving body for 

murals on existing buildings in the City at locations when there are no other 

design review entitlements being approved. In instances where a new building is 

being constructed and/or design review is being conducted concurrently by 

another entity such as the Planning Commission or staff, the approving body for 

murals in those instances will be the approving entity for the project.  

   

C. The City Council has considered the effect of the items in this 

resolution and found these actions to be consistent with the City of Rocklin 

General Plan, Housing Element, Zoning Ordinance (Title 17) and the public 

service needs of its residents as well as available fiscal and environmental 

resources. 

 

 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #7.



Page 3 

Reso. No. 2014-65 

Section 3. The City Council hereby approves this resolution addressing the 

City of Rocklin 2014 Sign Ordinance Amendment Implementation. 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22
nd

 day of April, 2014, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Councilmembers: Magnuson, Ruslin, Butler, Janda, Yuill 

  

NOES:  Councilmembers: None 

 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: None 

  

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: None 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Scott Yuill, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Barbara Ivanusich, City Clerk 
 

 

 

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #7.



ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATION  
AD-2013-05 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATION  

OF THE ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW 

(Rocklin Storage Del Rio Court / DR-2013-07) 
 
 The Economic and Community Development Director of the City of Rocklin does 
resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Economic and Community Development Director of the City 
of Rocklin finds and determines that: 
 
 A. City Council Ordinance 940, Section 9.b. authorizes the Economic and 
Community Development Director of the City of Rocklin to approve applications for 
design review entitlements in the Del Mar Business Park General Development Plan 
area. 
 
 B. This application is a request for approval of a design review entitlement 
to allow the development of an approximately 106,977 square foot mini-storage facility, 
including an on-site manager’s residence, on the south side of Del Rio Court. 
 
 C. A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was 
previously approved for this project via City Council Resolution 2009-119. 
 
 D. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, 
natural features and constraints. 
 
 E. The height, bulk, area, color scheme and materials of the buildings and 
structures are compatible with surrounding development. 
 
 F. The buildings and structures have been oriented with consideration given 
to minimizing energy consumption and maximizing use of natural lighting. 
 
 G. Adverse light and glare impacts upon adjoining properties have been 
eliminated or reduced to a less than significant level by consideration and modification 
of the location and height of light standards, orientation of exterior lighting fixtures, and 
conditioning the project to use light fixtures that will direct light downward. 
 
 H. The dimensions, placement, and design of the signs are compatible with 
the proposed buildings and structures and the surrounding development and 
environment. 
 

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #7.



Page 2 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

 I. The landscaping design is compatible with surrounding development and 
has been designed with provisions for minimizing water usage and maintenance needs. 
 
 J. The parking design, including ingress and egress traffic patterns, is 
compatible with the surrounding development and the public street patterns. 
 
 K. The design of the site and buildings or structures is consistent with the 
goals, policies, and land use designations in the General Plan and with all zoning 
standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
 Section 2. The Design Review for the (Rocklin Commercial and Storage / DR-
2013-07) as depicted in Exhibits A and B, attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein, is hereby approved subject to the conditions listed below.  The 
approved Exhibits A & B shall govern the design and construction of the project, except 
that, any condition directly addressing an element incorporated into Exhibits A & B shall 
be controlling and shall modify said exhibits.  All other plans, specifications, details, and 
information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable to the project and 
shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval.  Unless 
expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each 
condition prior to issuance of the building permit. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 
B. Conditions 

 
1. Utilities 

 
a. All utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, telephone, gas, 

electricity, and conduit for cable television shall be provided to the 
project in compliance with all-applicable standards and requirements of 
the applicable provider.  (APPLICABLE UTILITY) 

 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #7.



Page 3 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

b. Solid Waste Disposal – The applicant shall install masonry trash 
enclosures with solid metal gates to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director.  The location and design of trash 
enclosures shall provide for a minimum clear width and gate opening of 
11 feet, a minimum interior depth of 14 feet (to accommodate two trash 
bins), and gates designed to clear adjacent curbing to the satisfaction of 
the Auburn Placer Disposal Company.  (AUBURN PLACER DISPOSAL 
COMPANY, PLANNING) 

 
c.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the project shall be included (or 

provide verification that has already been included) in the appropriate 
City financing districts as needed to most efficiently provide for public 
maintenance of public landscaping, improvements such as sound walls, 
and provision of new or enhanced services such as street lighting to the 
satisfaction of the City Finance Manager. (FINANCE, ENGINEERING, 
PUBLIC WORKS) 
 
It is anticipated that the following will be necessary: 

Annexation into: CFD No. 5, Lighting & Landscaping District No. 2 
 

2. Schools 
 
At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to the 
Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code section 
17620 and Government Code Section 65995. (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT, BUILDING)  
 

3. Improvements / Improvement Plans 
 
Project improvements shall be designed, constructed and / or installed as shown 
on the approved improvement plans, in compliance with applicable city 
standards.  The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
(ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 
a. A detailed grading and drainage plan prepared by a registered civil 

engineer, in substantial compliance with the approved project exhibit(s).  
The grading and drainage plan shall include the following: 

i) All storm drainage run-off from site shall be collected into a City 
standard sand and oil trap manhole (or an equal as approved by 
the City Engineer) prior to discharge of storm run-off offsite.  Said 
sand and oil trap manhole shall be maintained by owner. 

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #7.



Page 4 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

ii) All storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City Engineer 
approved wording indicating that dumping of waste is prohibited 
and identifying that the inlets drain into the creek system. 

iii) Provisions for detaining run off at pre-development levels. 

iv) The developer shall prepare a Storm Water Pollutant Protection 
Plan (SWPPP) for review and approval by the State Regional 
Water Quality Control Board as part of the project’s drainage 
improvement plans.  

v) Prior to the commencement of grading operations, and if the 
project site will not balance with respect to grading, the 
contractor shall identify the site where any excess earthen 
material shall be deposited. If the deposit site is within the City of 
Rocklin, the contractor shall submit a report issued by a technical 
engineer to verify that the exported materials are suitable for the 
intended fill and show proof of all approved grading plans. Haul 
routes to be used shall be specified. If the site requires importing 
of earthen material, then prior to the commencement of grading 
operations, the contractor shall identify the site where the 
imported earthen material is coming from and the contractor 
shall submit a report issued by a technical engineer to verify that 
the imported materials are suitable for the intended fill and show 
proof of all approved grading plans. Haul routes to be used shall 
be specified. 

vi) If at any time during the course of grading or construction 
activities evidence of the existence of old wells, septic systems or 
other similar features is encountered, work shall be halted within 
100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall make a determination as to the 
nature of the feature (or features), the appropriate size for a 
buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on 
the balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should 
be notified and involved in addressing and/or remediation of the 
feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to 
assess and characterize the feature and to determine appropriate 
remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be 
completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to 
completion of grading/construction in the affected area 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #7.



Page 5 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

vii) Prior to any grading or construction activities, the 
applicant/developer shall demonstrate to the City that they have 
implemented and complied with the provisions of Sections 401 
and 404 of the Clean Water Act, as administered by the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board and the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, respectively. All terms, conditions and requirements of 
the permits shall be incorporated into and implemented with the 
project improvement plans to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer. 

viii) Prior to any grading or construction activities, the 
applicant/developer shall demonstrate to the City that they have 
implemented and complied with the provisions of Sections 1600-
1607 of the California Fish and Game Code, as administered by 
the California Department of Fish and Game. All terms, conditions 
and requirements of the permits shall be incorporated into and 
implemented with the project improvement plans to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

ix) Prior to any grading or construction activities, pre-construction 
protocol-level surveys shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 
on the portions of the project site planned for development to 
identify the presence or absence of Brandegee’s clarkia, big-scale 
balsam-root and Sanford’s arrowhead. The surveys shall be 
conducted during the appropriate blooming period (March – 
October) to ensure recognition of potentially-occurring species. 
The results of the surveys shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department for review. 

 If, as a result of the survey(s), special status plant species are 
determined not to occur on the project site planned for 
development, further action shall not be required. If, as a result of 
the survey(s), special status plant species are determined to occur 
on the project site planned for development, consultation by a 
qualified biologist/botanist with the California Department of Fish 
and Game (CDFG) and/or the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS) shall be initiated, and a mitigation plan shall be 
prepared based on the consultation. The mitigation plan shall 
detail the various mitigation approaches to ensure no net loss of 
the species, such as transplanting or the purchase of mitigation 
credits. 

 
b. All on site standard improvements, including but not limited to:  

 
i) paving, curbs (including concrete curbs to contain all landscape 

areas adjacent to vehicle parking areas or travel lanes), gutters, 

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #7.



Page 6 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

sidewalks, drainage improvements, irrigation improvements 
(main lines and distribution where located under paved areas), 
utility improvements, parking lot lights, fire hydrants (where 
necessary), retaining walls, fences, pilasters, enhanced pavement 
treatments, trash enclosures, etc.  

ii) To the extent possible underground facilities such as but not 
limited to electrical, gas, water, drainage, and irrigation lines shall 
be located outside of or to the edge of areas designated for 
landscaping so as to minimize impacts to the viability of these 
areas.   

 
c. A detailed parking lot striping plan designed per City standards, which 

indicates all parking spaces, aisles, entrances, and exits. 
 
d. The following on-site special improvements:   

 
i. All decorative tubular steel and/or wrought iron style fencing shall 

be constructed of medium gauge, or better, steel or aluminum 
and powder-coated black or dark bronze. 

ii) An appropriate storm water runoff collection system shall be 
installed adjacent to the homes on Americana Way to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

iii) The Del Mar General Development Plan states that: 

“Outdoor storage shall be prohibited except that boats, 
trailers, RV’s, etc. may be stored within the walled and 
gated portion of the mini-storage facility provided that 
they are not visible from adjacent pubic streets, rail road 
tracks, or residences.” 

The area immediately adjacent to the project site to the east has 
been proposed for single family residential development but has 
not yet been approved.  If determined to be necessary by the 
Economic and Community Development Director the applicant 
shall modify the project design to create a visual screen along the 
easterly boundary between the project and the proposed 
residential development.  Said visual screen could consist of a 
taller decorative screen wall, incorporation of a landscape area 
planted with screening vegetation into the project design, or 
other alternatives deemed acceptable by the Economic and 
Community Development Director.   

 
e. All areas disturbed by grading of the project site but not developed shall 

be rough graded smooth, have erosion control measures installed, and be 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #7.



Page 7 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

hydro-seeded (with a drought tolerant mix of wild flowers and grasses), 
as deemed appropriate by the City Engineer.  

 
f. Provisions for dust control, re-vegetation of disturbed areas, and erosion 

control, in conformance with the requirements of the City of Rocklin, 
including but not limited to the following (which shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans): 
 
i) Prior to commencement of grading, the developer shall submit a 

dust control plan for approval by the Economic and Community 
Development Director and the Placer County Air Pollution Control 
District.  The plans shall specify measures to reduce dust pollution 
during all phases of construction. 

ii) Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 25 
mph or less. 

iii) All grading operations shall be suspended when wind speeds 
exceed 25 mph. 

iv) All adjacent paved streets shall be swept during construction. 

v) All trucks leaving the site shall be washed off to eliminate dust 
and debris. 

vi) All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 

vii) All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 

viii) If fill dirt is brought to the construction site, tarps or soil 
stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize dust 
problems. 

ix) Water or dust palliatives shall be applied on all exposed earth 
surfaces as necessary to control dust.  Construction contracts shall 
include dust control treatment as frequently as necessary to 
minimize dust. 

x) Construction equipment shall be properly maintained and tuned. 

xi) Low emission mobile construction equipment shall be utilized 
where possible. 

xii) Open burning of vegetation is prohibited. 

xiii) If evidence of an archaeological or paleontological site is 
uncovered during grading or other construction activities, work 
shall be halted within 100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin 
Community Development Department shall be immediately 
notified.  A qualified archaeologist or paleontologist shall be 
retained at the expense of the developer to conduct an on-site 

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #7.



Page 8 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

evaluation and provide recommendations for removal and/or 
preservation.  Work on the project site shall not resume until the 
archaeologist or paleontologist has had a reasonable time to 
conduct an examination and implement mitigation measures 
deemed appropriate and necessary by the Community 
Development Department to reduce impacts to a less than 
significant level. 

 
4. Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way 

 
The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for all improvements within 
the public right-of-way.  Applicant shall post a performance bond and labor and 
materials payment bond (or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 
100% of the cost of the improvements to be constructed in the public right-of-
way as improvement security to ensure the faithful performance of all duties and 
obligations required of applicant in the construction of the improvements.  Such 
improvement security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  Such 
security shall be either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other 
instrument of credit issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the 
State or Federal government and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out 
this Agreement are on deposit and guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit 
made either directly with the City or deposited with a recognized escrow agent 
for the benefit of the City. (PUBLIC WORKS) 
 

5. Landscaping 
 
a. Final landscape plans shall be prepared by the developer and approved 

by the Economic and Community Development Director.  The landscape 
plans shall comply with the following requirements (PLANNING): 
 
i) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 

and shall include: 

(1) A legend of the common and botanical names of specific 
plant materials to be used.  The legend should indicate the 
size of plant materials. 

(a) Shrubs shall be a minimum five-(5) gallon and trees 
a minimum of 15 gallon and meet the minimum 
height specified by the American Standards for 
Nursery Stock.  

(2) A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 

(3) An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system.  
The plan shall include drip irrigation wherever possible. 

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #7.



Page 9 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

(4) Berming of landscape strips along the public right-of-way 
and the installation of shrubs to screen the undercarriages 
of vehicles as viewed from off-site. 

(5) Provision for the shading of the parking lot spaces by 
shade trees planted at a minimum of one for every five 
parking spaces. 

(6) Granite or moss rock boulders along the planting strips. 

ii) The plan shall be certified by the landscape architect that the 
landscape plan meets the requirements of the water Conservation 
and Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, et seq. 

 
b. The parking lot lighting plan shall be designed and located to 

accommodate shade trees and provide for illumination of the parking 
areas. Light standards and underground utilities shall be located such that 
required parking lot shade trees can still be planted.  

 
c. All landscaping shall be installed and the landscape architect shall certify, 

in writing, that the landscaping and irrigation system have been installed 
in full compliance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy.  

 
d. Prior to building permit issuance the landscape plans shall be modified as 

follows: 
 

i) Add climbing vines to grow over the trellis structures shown on 
Building A. 

ii) Specify that the Photinia Fraseri proposed along the railroad right-
of-way boundary of the site are to be planted at no greater than 
10-foot on center. 

6. Landscaping Maintenance Agreement 
 
Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the property owner shall enter 
into an agreement with the City of Rocklin providing for the maintenance of 
landscaping within the public right-of-way along Del Rio Court along the project’s 
frontage (not including the roundabout).  The agreement shall stipulate that the 
property owner shall maintain the irrigation system and all plant materials.  The 
agreement shall also indemnify the City against claims arising from developer’s 
activities and shall be recorded and binding on successors in interest of the 
developer. (ENGINEERING / PUBLIC WORKS) 
 

7. Lighting 
 

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #7.



Page 10 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

a. All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed to avoid adverse glare 
on adjacent properties.  Lighting fixtures shall be used and mounted such 
that all light is projected directly toward the ground.  Light poles shall be 
a maximum of 20’ in height as measured from grade to the top of the 
light.  The lighting design plan shall be approved by the Economic and 
Community Development Director for compliance with this condition. 
(PLANNING) 

 
8. Signs 

 
All signs shall conform to the Sign Ordinance of the City of Rocklin and the sign 
design(s) and location(s) as shown on Exhibit B, except as modified herein. 
(PLANNING) 
 
a. No signage shall be allowed on building walls that face adjacent 

residential sites or development.  
 
b. Prior to building permit issuance, the freestanding entry sign proposed on 

Del Rio Court shall be modified to include the project site address to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 

 
c. The 15 foot high monument sign shall not utilize internally illuminated 

letters.   
 

9. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 
 
a. All mechanical equipment, whether ground or roof mounted shall be 

screened from view from all public rights of way to the satisfaction of the 
Economic and Community Development Director.  The design of the 
screening shall be in harmony with the architectural design of the 
building. (PLANNING) 

 

b. The appearance of large utility features, such as double detector check 
valves, shall be minimized through the use of utility blankets or other 
acceptable screening methods. The developer shall also demonstrate 
that these facilities have been moved as far as possible from the public 
right-of-way. (PLANNING) 

 
10. Security  

 
a. Prior to building permit issuance the applicant shall prepare a security 

plan for review by the Rocklin Police Department, and shall provide the 
Rocklin Police Department with the name(s) and telephone number(s) of 
a responsible party to contact. (POLICE) 

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #7.



Page 11 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

 
b. Prior to building / unit occupancy the property owner, or each tenant, 

shall obtain and maintain at all times, an Alarm System Permit for each 
security system installed and operated in the building / shopping center / 
complex , if any, in accord with the requirements of Chapter 9.44 of the 
Rocklin Municipal Code. (POLICE) 

 
11. Maintenance  

 
a. The property owner shall remove within 72 hours all graffiti placed on 

any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or structure on the property 
consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal Code Section 9.32.  
Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall report the 
graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

 
b. The project, including but not limited to paving, landscaping, structures, 

and improvements shall be maintained by the property owners, to the 
standard of similarly situated properties in equivalent use zones, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 
12. Design 

 
a. Prior to building permit issuance, the project plans shall be modified as 

needed to ensure that Buildings A and F comply with the minimum 25-
foot setback requirement noted in the Del Mar General Development 
Plan and preserve minimum drive aisle widths and turning radii. 

 
13. Air Quality 

 
a. Electrical outlets shall be installed in the exterior walls of the building(s) 

in this project to promote the use of electrical landscaping equipment. 
(BULDING, PLANNING) 

 
b. Low nitrous oxide (NOx) natural gas hot water heaters shall be installed if 

gas hot water heaters are to be used in this project. (BUILDING, 
PLANNING) 

 
14. Noise 

 
a. All “self-powered” construction equipment and stationary noise sources 

(i.e. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped with noise 
control devices (e.g., mufflers). (ENGINEERING, BUILDING) 

 

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #7.



Page 12 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

b. Equipment “warm-up” areas, water storage tanks, equipment storage 
areas, and stationary noise-generating machinery (i.e. pumps, electrical 
generators, etc.) shall be located away from existing residences and other 
sensitive noise receptors to the extent feasible. (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 

 
c. All phases of project development shall be subject to the City of Rocklin 

Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting construction-related 
noise generating activities within or near residential areas to between 
7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 
p.m. on weekends.  The Economic and Community Development Director 
may grant exceptions to the Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the 
opinion of the Economic and Community Development Director, special 
and unusual circumstances exist that make strict adherence to the 
Construction Noise Guidelines infeasible. (ENGINEERING, BUILDING)  

 
d. Use of a public address system that can be heard outside of the building 

is prohibited. (PLANNING) 
 

15. Monitoring 
 
Prior to any grading on the property, the developer shall deposit with the City of 
Rocklin the current fee to pay for the City’s time and material cost to administer 
the Mitigation Monitoring Program.  The Economic and Community 
Development Director shall determine if and when additional deposits must be 
paid for administering the Mitigation Monitoring Program, including additional 
deposits on subsequent phases of construction. These amounts shall be paid 
prior to construction for additional phases on this project. (ENGINEERING, 
BUIDLING, PLANNING) 
 

16. Validity 
 
This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless prior to 
that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension has been 
granted. (PLANNING) 

  

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #7.



Page 13 of 
Administrative Determination No.  

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 30th day of September, 2013, by the Economic and 
Community Development Director of the City of Rocklin as authorized by City Council 
Ordinance 940, Section 9.b. 
 
 
 
     ________________________________________ 
     Economic and Community Development Director 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 
P:\PERMANENT PLANNING FILES\ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATIONS\2013\Rocklin Storage Del Rio Court DR-2013-07 9-30-13.docx 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #7.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Administrative Determination No.  

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Design Review Documents are available at the Community Development Department 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #7.



P
acket P

g. 8
0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 8
9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 9
0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

1-
C

2-
R

G
1-

2 
Ti

tle
.d

w
g,

 C
1-

Ti
tle

, 8
/5

/2
01

3 
12

:5
6:

30
 P

M
, S

co
tt,

 P
D

F.
pc

3,
 2

4x
36

, 1
:1

P
acket P

g. 9
1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

3-
D

im
-4

0,
 8

/5
/2

01
3 

12
:5

8:
42

 P
M

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 9
2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

4-
1-

G
ra

di
ng

-4
0,

 9
/1

9/
20

13
 1

2:
28

:3
1 

PM
, S

co
tt,

 P
D

F.
pc

3,
 2

4x
36

, 1
:1

P
acket P

g. 9
3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

4-
2-

G
ra

di
ng

-2
0-

N
or

th
, 9

/1
9/

20
13

 1
2:

30
:4

2 
PM

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 9
4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

4-
3-

G
ra

di
ng

-2
0-

So
ut

h,
 8

/5
/2

01
3 

12
:5

9:
18

 P
M

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 9
5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

5-
1-

U
til

ity
-4

0,
 8

/5
/2

01
3 

1:
00

:4
6 

PM
, S

co
tt,

 P
D

F.
pc

3,
 2

4x
36

, 1
:1

P
acket P

g. 9
6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

5-
2-

U
til

ity
-D

et
ai

ls
, 8

/5
/2

01
3 

1:
00

:1
6 

PM
, S

co
tt,

 P
D

F.
pc

3,
 2

4x
36

, 1
:1

P
acket P

g. 9
7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

5-
3-

Fi
re

-4
0,

 8
/5

/2
01

3 
1:

00
:3

0 
PM

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 9
8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

3-
C

7-
R

G
3 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.d
w

g,
 C

7-
Se

ct
io

ns
, 9

/1
9/

20
13

 1
2:

25
:0

2 
PM

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 9
9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



E
:\L

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
20

04
\S

m
ith

-D
el

R
io

\d
w

g\
D

el
R

io
 C

8-
D

et
ai

ls
.d

w
g,

 C
8-

3 
P

la
nn

in
g,

 8
/5

/2
01

3 
1:

49
:4

3 
PM

, S
co

tt,
 P

D
F.

pc
3,

 2
4x

36
, 1

:1

P
acket P

g. 1
0

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



Packet Pg. 102

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 103

Agenda Item #7.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
0

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



Packet Pg. 110

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 111

Agenda Item #7.



P
acket P

g. 1
1

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
1

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



P
acket P

g. 1
1

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 

Location One: Dawson Oil and Carwash at 4325 Pacific Street 

Location Two: Meek’s Lumber and Hardware at 4243 Dominguez Road 

  P
acket P

g. 1
1

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 

Location One: Dawson Oil and Carwash at 4325 Pacific Street with mock-up of sign (not to scale) 

 

  

P
acket P

g. 1
1

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 

Location Two: Meek’s Lumber and Hardware at 4243 Dominguez Road with mock-up of sign (scale) 

 

P
acket P

g. 1
1

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #7
.



 
 
 

 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
DATE:  February 2, 2016 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Director 
  Bret Finning, Acting Planning Services Manager 
  Dara Dungworth, Associate Planner 
 
RE:  Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street 
  Revised Project and Photo-simulations at 50 feet 
 
  Design Review & Conditional Use Permit 
  (DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 
 
 
At the Planning Commission hearing on December 15, 2015, the proposed Verizon 
telecommunications facility was considered. The Planning Commission expressed 
concern regarding the proposed 75-foot height of the tower, but considered the 
applicant’s position that a tower of less than 75 feet would not have the height 
necessary to send and receive signals over the nearby power lines. The Commission 
requested additional information to consider a tower 50 feet in height, as staff 
supported, to compare with the requested 75-foot tall tower. The Commission also 
expressed their preference for a peaked roof on the simulated water tank to make it 
look more accurate and visually appealing. The project was continued to allow the 
applicant sufficient time to prepare and submit the exhibits requested by the 
Commission. 
 
In response to the Commission’s direction, the applicant revised the water tank design 
to include a peaked roof making the overall height of the structure 77 feet. This plan set 
is attached to the draft resolution for the Design Review as Exhibit A.  
 
Attached to this memo are photo-simulations of the proposed water tank tower at the 
proposed 75 feet tall and at a height of 50 feet tall as the Commission requested 
(Attachment 1). Also provided with this memo is the original staff report prepared for 
the December 15 hearing (Attachment 2). 
 
Because the project would not result in any significant improvements to service 
coverage within the Rocklin city limits, staff continues to support a structure with a 
maximum height of 50 feet. Staff has provided the original Conditional Use Permit and 

Packet Pg. 119

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re: Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street 
February 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Design Review draft resolutions of approval should the Commission choose to act to 
approve a 50-foot tall maximum facility.  
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-
0008) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF A WIRELESS TELE-
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / U2014-0008) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
DESIGN REVIEW TO INSTALL A WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY (Verizon 
Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014) 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
1) Photo-simulations of the tower at 75 feet and 50 feet tall 
2) December 15, 2015 Planning Commission Staff Report and Blue Memo  
 
 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 2-2-16\01 Verizon on Pacific PC 2-2-
16 Revisions Cover Memo - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 120

Agenda Item #8.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
2

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



CITY OF ROCKLIN

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 15, 2015 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Director 
Ben Fu, Planning Services Manager 
Dara Dungworth, Associate Planner 

RE: Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street – Blue Memo 
Condition Revision 

Design Review and Conditional Use Permit 
(DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 

Subsequent to the publication of the Planning Commission agenda for today’s meeting, the 
applicant requested a minor modification to the language of Maintenance condition 5.a. for the 
Conditional Use Permit, as provided below (proposed added text is underscored):  

5. Maintenance

a. The property owner shall remove within 72 hours of being notified of its
presence all graffiti placed on any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or
structure on the property consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal
Code Section 9.32.  Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall
report the graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING,
POLICE)

The City Attorney reviewed this modification to the standard condition and had no objections 
to the revising language. 

P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 12-15-15\000 Verizon on Pacific PC 12-15-15 
Blue Memo - final.docx 

Attachment 2

Packet Pg. 130

Agenda Item #8.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street 
Design Review, DR2014-0014 

Conditional Use Permit, U2014-0008 
 

December 15, 2015 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Application Request/Recommendation 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit to 
install a 75-foot tall simulated water tower and to operate a wireless telecommunications 
facility, including 12 panel antennae, an emergency back-up diesel generator, and other 
associated ground equipment at an existing commercial property.  
 

Staff does not support the request for a 75-foot tall tower. Staff can support a 50-foot tall 
tower. Staff finds the project, modified to meet the maximum structural height in the zone (50 
feet), and subject to the recommended conditions of approval, consistent with the General 
Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, the Citywide Design Review Criteria, and compatible with 
surrounding existing and approved land uses. 
 
To facilitate Planning Commission discussion and possible action, the following documents 
have been provided, reflective of the 50-foot tall facility that Staff supports: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A NOTICE 
OF EXEMPTION (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF A WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATONS 
FACILITY (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / U2014-0008) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN 
REVIEW TO INSTALL A WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATONS FACILITY (Verizon Wireless on Pacific 
Street / DR2014-0014) 

Packet Pg. 131

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 2 
 
Location/Applicant/Owner 
 
The subject property is located at 4335 Pacific Street. APN 045-021-009. The applicant is 
Michelle Ellis representing Complete Wireless Consulting for Verizon Wireless and the property 
owner is Road Safety, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Vicinity Map 
 
Site Characteristics and Project Background  
 
The development of the site as a commercial property dates to the early 1980’s. The building 
currently houses Gene McCafferty’s Automotive Services. Access to the side and back portion 
of the parking lot west of the building is controlled with a chain link fence and gate. 
 
The project site is in the southwest corner of the parking lot. The adjacent property to the 
south and southeast is the site of the former Sierra Pine fiberboard manufacturing facility that 
is in the process of being removed and the site remediated. The smaller building on the 
northwest corner of the site is planned to remain and will continue to occupy the smaller of 
the two parcels that would be created by the recording of the approved Tentative Parcel Map 
(DL2015-0003) that the Commission approved on September 15, 2015. This building is 
expected to continue operating with uses consistent with the former HI designation and 
current M-2 zoning. It is considered a legal non-conforming use. 
 
 

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 132

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 3 
 
Surrounding Land Uses 
 

 General Plan Zoning Existing Land Use 
Site: Heavy Industrial (HI) Heavy Industrial (M-2) Industrial/Service Commercial 

Use 
 
Gene McCafferty’s Automotive 
Services 

South-
west/ 
West  

Heavy Industrial (HI) Planned Development 
Heavy Industrial (PD-HI) 

Industrial Use 
 
Various businesses including a 
natural gas product distributor 
and a pharmaceutical 
compounding company 

North 
(across 
Pacific 
Street) 

Light Industrial (LI) Planned Development 
Light Industrial (PD-LI) 

Railroad Right-of-way/ 
Commercial  
 
Tracks and A&A Stepping 
Stone landscaping products 

East/ 
South-
east 

Heavy Industrial (HI) 
 
High Density Residential 
(HDR) and Mixed Use 
(MU 

Heavy Industrial (M-2) 
 
M-2, Zoning has not 
been updated 

Dawson’s Oil filling station 
 
Former Sierra Pine site 

South High Density Residential 
(HDR) and Mixed Use 
(MU 

M-2, Zoning has not 
been updated 

Former Sierra Pine site 

 
Environmental Determination 
 
The project is categorically exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines under Section 15303 – New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures. For a 
more in-depth discussion of the environmental evaluation and conclusion, please refer to the 
Notice of Exemption attached to the draft resolution approving said exemption. 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (M-2). The proposed wireless telecommunications 
facility is considered acceptable upon approval of a conditional use permit. Staff reviewed the 
project with respect to the development standards set forth in the Zoning Ordinance for the 
M-2 zone district and found that the proposed 75-foot tall tower exceeds the maximum 
structural height in the zone (50 feet) and that there are no findings that can be made to 
support allowing the proposed 75-foot tower. However, as conditioned to be no more than 50 

Packet Pg. 133

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 4 
 
feet tall overall, the project would be consistent with the zoning. The use is consistent with the 
General Plan designation of Heavy Industrial. 
 
Use Permit / Compatibility with Adjoining Land Uses 
 
Changing Land Uses in Project Vicinity 
As seen in the Development Sites map below, the area surrounding the project site is changing 
from predominantly industrially designated land to residentially zoned and developed land. 
The blue highlighted property is the former Sierra Pine site which has General Plan 
designations of High Density Residential and Mixed Use. Of the residential projects that are 
closest to the project site, Parklands South, Brighton, and Garnet Creek are under construction, 
while the Granite and Dominguez final map and improvement plans are being processed. All 
four of these subdivisions included approvals of General Plan Amendments and Rezones to 
change the designated land uses from industrial to mostly single family residential in the last 
two to five years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Granite Drive and Pacific Street Development Sites 
 
The transition of this part of Rocklin from industrially designated land to residentially 
developed land is the basis for staff’s concern regarding the height of the proposed tower. The 
maximum height in the M-2 zone, with approval of a conditional use permit, is 50 feet. The 
proposed 75-foot tall tower would not be compatible with the single family residential areas 
surrounding the project site or the high density residential immediately adjacent to the site. In 
the M-2 zone, a conditional use permit is required for primary structure heights that exceed 30 
feet, up to a maximum of 50 feet. 

Packet Pg. 134

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 
The operation of the facility, as analyzed and conditioned, would not pose a compatibility 
problem, as discussed below. 
 
Radio Frequency Exposure Analysis 
The Telecommunications Act of 1996 specifically limits the authority of the City in regulating 
antennae and associated equipment to siting, construction, modification, and use, but 
specifically prohibits local governments from regulating them on the basis of health (i.e. 
exposure to radio frequency electromagnetic fields) if they meet the Federal Communications 
Commission’s (FCC) standards. Section 704a of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 added a 
Section 332(c)(7)(B)(iv) that reads as follows: 
 

No State or local government or instrumentality thereof may regulate the 
placement, construction, and modification of personal wireless service facilities 
on the basis of the environmental effects of radio frequency emissions to the 
extent that such facilities comply with the Commission’s regulations concerning 
such emissions. 

 
The applicant provided an analysis, prepared by Hammett & Edison, Inc. (dated May 20, 2015), 
to evaluate exposure to radio frequency electromagnetic fields for the proposed facility. The 
study concluded that the maximum radio frequency exposure level due to the operation of the 
proposed Verizon facility would be 1.8% of the applicable public exposure limit at ground level. 
The general population exposure limit is less than the occupational exposure limit.1  
 
Because of the proposed project’s proximity to the portion of the Sierra Pine site that is 
designated high density residential and because the small building on the Sierra Pine site is 
slated to remain and be occupied, Staff requested that the applicant provide exposure analysis 
for the adjacent current and future uses. The maximum calculated exposure level at the second 
floor of a building located at least 50 feet away from the facility is 2.4% of the public limit. The 
maximum calculated level at the top floor of a possible future 50-foot tall building at least 120 
feet away from the facility is 5.8% of the public limit. 
 
Due to the mounting location and height and the block wall enclosure and locked gate, the 
antennae would not be accessible to the general public. Therefore, no mitigation measures are 
needed to comply with the FCC public exposure guidelines. The report assumes that Verizon 
will adhere to FCC licensing requirements to comply with FCC occupational exposure 
guidelines. 
 
A condition of approval in the draft Design Review resolution approving a 50-foot tall 
maximum overall tower requires the applicant/developer to submit a revised radio frequency 

1  Public or general population/uncontrolled exposure – The FCC adopted human exposure limits for 
Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields. Separate limits apply for occupational/controlled exposure and for public 
or general population/uncontrolled exposure conditions. 

                                            

Packet Pg. 135

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 6 
 
electromagnetic field analysis for a 50-foot tall facility with antennae mounted at the 
appropriate height. The report shall be reviewed and approved by the Economic and 
Community Development Director and the Environmental Services Manager, prior to the 
issuance of a building permit for any part of the proposed facility. The condition also states 
that the FCC exposure limits must be met for the current and potential building heights and 
land uses, as known at the time of the facility submitting for a building permit.  
 
Noise Analysis 
The applicant provided a noise analysis, prepared by Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc. (dated 
October 22, 2015), to evaluate the noise produced by the equipment cabinets and the 
generator. The report concluded that the cooling fans of the proposed equipment cabinets, 
shielded by the proposed 8-foot tall CMU block wall, will meet the City’s daytime and nighttime 
noise level standard and no further mitigation is required. The report also evaluated the noise 
from the proposed back-up generator, concluded that the generator would exceed the daytime 
noise standard and recommended a mitigation measure to ensure the generator would 
comply. The generator will run continuously during any extended power outages and 
periodically for operational testing for approximately 15 minutes once every two weeks during 
daytime hours. 
 
The City’s noise limits as set forth in the Noise Element of the 2012 General Plan Update are for 
daytime (7 a.m. to 10 p.m.) 55 dBA hourly average and for nighttime (10 p.m. to 7 a.m.) 45 dBA 
hourly average. These limits must be adhered to at least five feet inside the property line of the 
receiving land use at a point five feet above ground level. It is important to note that due to 
the infrequent amount of use, the City is no longer requiring that emergency generators meet 
the City’s nighttime noise level standard, but that they must still comply with the daytime noise 
level standard. The report concludes that the proposed eight-foot tall CMU enclosure wall does 
not adequately mitigate the specified generator’s noise (59 dBA) to comply with the City’s 
daytime standard (55 dBA). To ensure compliance with the City’s noise standards, Staff 
included a condition requiring the type and model of generator that was analyzed and 
recommended as mitigation in the acoustical report. The condition also requires that the 
enclosure and generator mitigations are in place and the noise levels comply with the City’s 
noise level standards prior to the project receiving a Certificate of Occupancy and during 
ongoing operations of the facility. 
 
Design Review 
 
Photo-simulations depicting the existing project site and the proposed project are provided as 
Attachment 1 to the staff report. 
 
Tower Height and Design 
As noted above, Staff determined that the proposed 75-foot height of the simulated tower 
would not be compatible with the surrounding residential development. The original proposal 
was for an 84-foot tall mono-tower with no stealth design to camouflage or lessen the visual 

Packet Pg. 136

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 7 
 
impact of the tower. Staff initially told the applicant that we could not support a facility greater 
than 40 feet in height since that has been the maximum height approved for most other stand-
alone facilities. Staff also indicated that in the past, the City has preferred to have a number of 
shorter facilities rather than one very tall facility and therefore, we would be unlikely to 
support co-location of other carriers on this tower. The applicant came back with a simulated 
water tower design at approximately 75 feet tall. This interim design included a peaked “roof” 
on top of the tower, which Staff felt was more visually appealing that the flat-top roof now 
proposed for approval. 
 
In an effort to compromise, Staff determined that a 50 foot tall tower could be supported as 
that height is consistent with the maximum height in the zone and the tower would be unlikely 
to be taller than the high density residential development anticipated on the former Sierra 
Pine site. Staff preferred the water tank design with the peaked roof, however. The applicant 
maintains that Verizon’s engineer has established that the 75 foot height is the minimum 
height required for Verizon to achieve the desired service coverage. As shown in the service 
coverage maps provided at Attachment 2, the most significant service improvement would be 
realized within the Loomis town borders. The coverage maps show coverage levels at various 
antennae heights. 
 
Because the area is no longer designated primarily for industrial uses, Staff believes a tower of 
that height, even "stealthed" (camoflaged) within a simulated water tower, is not a compatible 
land use or aesthetic design. Therefore, Staff does not recommend approval of the proposed 
project as shown in Exhibit A. A city’s power to control its own land use decisions derives from 
the police power inherent to the jurisdiction to protect health, safety, morals, and general 
welfare. This power includes land use and aesthetic restrictions. The City’s approving body, in 
this case the Planning Commission, has the authority to make a final determination that a 
project meets the City’s design review objectives and criteria. The California Supreme Court has 
held that aesthetic reasons alone can justify the exercise of the police power. 
 
Staff has drafted conditions of approval that require the facility to be a water tower or other 
visually appealing structure with a maximum overall height not to exceed 50 feet. As drafted, 
the final design would be subject to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director. If, rather than allow staff level approval, the Commission wishes to 
review and approve the final tower design, this can be achieved in one of two ways: either with 
a continuance to a future hearing to allow the applicant to return with design revisions or by 
revising the condition language to require that the applicant come back to receive a substantial 
compliance approval from the Commission prior to submitting for a building permit. 
 
Equipment Enclosure 
The project proposes to locate an approximately 1,200-square-foot equipment enclosure (30’ x 
40’) within the existing parking lot in the southwest corner. As required for noise attenuation, 
the enclosure wall will be 8 feet tall and will be constructed of split-face CMU. In addition to 
mitigating noise, the enclosure wall will screen all the ground equipment except for two small 

Packet Pg. 137

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 8 
 
vertical GPS antennae. The masonry wall will include columns with decorative caps at the 
corners and at the gate opening. The resolution includes the standard condition that requires 
the gate be metal, solid, and view-obstructing. The plans call out a composite wood (Trex) 
access gate that will be revised prior to the submittal for a building permit. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 1: Photo-simulations for the proposed project  
Attachment 2:  Service coverage maps 
 
 
Prepared by Dara Dungworth, Associate Planner 
 
 
DD/ 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 12-15-15\01 Verizon at Pacific PC 12-15-15 SR 
DR2014-0014 - final.doc 

Packet Pg. 138

Agenda Item #8.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment 1 Photo-simulations for the proposed project 

Packet Pg. 139

Agenda Item #8.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Verizon on Pacific Street 
December 15, 2015 
Page 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment 2 Service Coverage Maps 
 

Packet Pg. 144

Agenda Item #8.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 1 

 
 

Granite Drive – Offload Sectors 

Exhausted Sectors of 
Existing Sites: 
 
 
Loomis – sector 2 
 
Wolverine – sector1 
Wolverine – sector3 
 
Whitney – sector1 
 
Clover Valley – sector2 
 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 2 

Existing LTE Coverage  
Without Granite Drive 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 3 

LTE Coverage with Granite Drive 
Antennas at 80ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 4 

Area Coverage with Granite Drive 
Antennas at 70ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 5 

Area Coverage with Granite Drive 
Antennas at 60ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
4

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 6 

Area Coverage with Granite Drive 
Antennas at 50ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
5

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 7 

Area Coverage with Granite Drive 
Antennas at 40ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
5

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



Confidential and proprietary materials for authorized Verizon personnel and outside agencies only. Use, disclosure or distribution of this material is not permitted to any unauthorized persons or third parties except by written agreement. 8 

Alpha Sector – Elevation Profile 

Site Location 
       302 ft 
 
 
Average 
Elevation Along 
King Road 
       355 ft 
 
Average 
Obstruction  
       375 ft 

P
acket P

g. 1
5

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.



  
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

 
(Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin’s Environmental Coordinator has reviewed the Verizon 
Wireless Communications Facility at 4335 Pacific Street project (DR2014-0014 and U2014-
0008)(“Project”) and determined that it is exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section 15303 – New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin 
as follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Environmental 

Coordinator, the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that the Project is exempt 
from review under the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
Section 2. A Notice of Exemption is approved for the Project. 
 
Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the Planning Commission, the 

Environmental Coordinator may file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of Placer 
County and, if the Project requires a discretionary approval from any state agency, with the 
State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of Section 21152(b) of the 
Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:  
ABSENT: Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:   
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Gregg McKenzie, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 153

Agenda Item #8.a.



  
 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 
TO:   County Clerk, County of Placer  FROM: City of Rocklin 

2954 Richardson Blvd.    Planning Department 
 Auburn, CA 95604-5228    3970 Rocklin Road 
       Rocklin, CA 95677 
  
Project Title:  Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street Project (DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008) 
 
Project Location - Specific: The subject property is located at 4335 Pacific Street, Rocklin, 
CA, APN 045-021-009. 
 
Project Location - City: Rocklin, CA; County:  Placer 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: The project consists of a request 
for approval of Design Review and Use Permit entitlements (DR-2014-014 and U2014-0008) to 
allow the construction and operation of a wireless communications facility with twelve panel 
antennae and associated equipment, mounted on a 50-foot tall, simulated water tank structure. 
The project’s 40’ x 40’ lease area will be surrounded by an 8-foot tall split face CMU wall and 
will house all equipment for the antennae at the base of the structure, including underground 
power and telecommunications utilities, a standby diesel generator, and a co-axial cable ice 
bridge. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project:   
City of Rocklin City Council 
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project 
The applicant is Sacramento Valley Limited Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless, Attn: Michelle 
Ellis, Complete Wireless Consulting, Inc., 2009 V Street, Sacramento, CA, 95818, (916) 764-2454. 
 
Exempt Status (Check one) 

_x_ Categorical Exemption (California Code of Regulations Sec. 15300 et seq.): Section 
15303 – New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures 

 
Reasons why the project is exempt. This project consists of the construction and operation of a 
50-foot tall cellular communications tower and antenna array, as further described above. Class 
3 exemptions consist of the construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities 
or structures, including accessory structures. The project as proposed is consistent with the 
exemption class description noted above and is exempt pursuant to Class 3 of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  
 
Contact Person:  Marc Mondell, Economic & Community Development Director 
 
Date received for Filing: __________________ 
 
Signature:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Marc Mondell, Economic & Community Development Director 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 2-2-16\02 Verizon on Pacific Street 
NOE and Reso 15303 (2016) - final.doc 

Packet Pg. 154

Agenda Item #8.a.



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE OPERATION OF A WIRELESS 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 
 

(Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / U2014-0008) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines that: 
 
 A. This conditional use permit, U2015-0008, allows the installation and operation 
of a telecommunications facility located at 4335 Pacific Street. The project includes 12 new 
antennae on a 50-foot maximum overall height structure and ground equipment including a 
back-up diesel generator. APN 045-021-009. 
 
 B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this project via Planning 
Commission Resolution No. ______. 
 
 C. The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the proposed uses and 
buildings or structures will not, under the circumstances of this particular case, be detrimental 
or injurious to the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or working within the 
neighborhood of the proposed use, to property and improvements in the neighborhood, or to 
the general welfare of the City. 
 
 D. The establishment, operation, and maintenance of the uses and buildings or 
structures is consistent with the goals, policies, and land use designations in the General Plan 
and with all zoning standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
Section 2. This conditional use permit for Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / (U2014-0008) 
is hereby approved as depicted and further described in Exhibit A of the concurrent design 
review DR2014-0014, subject to the conditions listed below. Unless expressly stated otherwise, 
the applicant/developer shall be solely responsible for satisfying each condition and the 
conditions must be satisfied prior to issuance of the building permit, or issuance of certificate 
of occupancy as determined by the Director of Economic and Community Development. 
 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code 
§66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the date of 
approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of the 

Packet Pg. 155

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other exaction contained in this 
notice, complying with all the requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be 
legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions 
 
1. Permits 
 

The applicant shall obtain all necessary approvals from the Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC) and the Public Utilities Commission (PUC). (PLANNING) 
 

2. Additional Antennae 
 
Additional wireless communications antennae, not included in this application, may 
only be added to this location upon the granting of a new or modified conditional use 
permit if such additions would require additional modifications to the 
building/structure design, the site layout, or any aspect of the approved facility. Those 
additions which could be accommodated within existing screening and equipment 
structures and comply with exposure limitations may be approved as substantial 
compliance by the Economic and Community Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
3. Lighting 
 

Any exterior lighting associated with the facility shall be mounted such that it is 
screened by the equipment enclosure wall and shall be not be illuminated unless 
Verizon personnel are present on the site. (PLANNING) 

 
4. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 
 

All mechanical equipment shall be screened from view from all public rights of way as 
shown in Exhibit A, to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development 
Director. (PLANNING) 

 
5.  Maintenance  
 

a. The property owner shall remove within 72 hours of being notified of its 
presence all graffiti placed on any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or 
structure on the property consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal 
Code Section 9.32.  Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall 
report the graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING, 
POLICE) 

 
b. The project, including but not limited to the antennae enclosures, equipment 

enclosure, equipment, landscaping, and related improvements shall be 
maintained by the property owners, to the standard of similarly situated 

Packet Pg. 156

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

properties in equivalent use zones, to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
6. Air Quality 
 

Stationary sources or processes (e.g., certain types of engines, boilers, heaters, etc.) 
associated with this project shall be required to obtain an Authority to Construct (ATC) 
permit from the Placer County Air Pollution Control District (District / PCAPCD) prior to 
the construction of these sources. In general, the following types of sources shall be 
required to obtain a permit: 1). Any engine greater than 50 brake horsepower, 2). Any 
boiler that produces heat in excess of 1,000,000 Btu per hour, or 3) Any equipment or 
process which discharges 2 lbs. per day or more of pollutants. Note that equipment 
associated with residential structures containing no more than 1 to 4 residential units 
are exempt from this requirement. Developers / contactors should contact the District 
prior to construction for additional information. (Based on APCD Rule 501 and the 
California Health & Safety Code, Section 39013). (PCAPCD) 

 
7. Noise 
 

a. All “self-powered” construction equipment and other stationary noise sources 
(i.e. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped with noise control 
devices (e.g., mufflers) and shall be located away from existing residences and 
other sensitive noise receptors to the extent feasible. (PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
b. All phases of project development shall be subject to the City of Rocklin 

Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting construction-related noise 
generating activities within or near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 
7:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends. The 
Economic and Community Development Director may grant exceptions to the 
Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the opinion of the Economic and Community 
Development Director, special and unusual circumstances exist that make strict 
adherence to the Construction Noise Guidelines infeasible. (BUILDING) 

 
c. Prior to a Certificate of Occupancy and throughout the operation of the facility, 

the operation of the emergency back-up generator shall comply with the City’s 
stationary noise source standards, below, as measured at a point 5 feet inside 
the adjacent residential property line to the west:  

 
 Daytime 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. – 55 dBA 
  

Proof of compliance with this condition from an acoustical engineer may be 
required. (PLANNING) 

 
d. The testing of the generator for routine maintenance shall occur only during 

daytime hours (7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.). (PLANNING) 
 

Packet Pg. 157

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 4 of 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

e. The generator shall be a Polar Power, Inc. Model 8340Y-3TNV88-001 (15 kW) 
diesel generator equipped with an 88-25-0603 enclosure, or a model with 
equivalent noise level generation, as determined by an acoustical engineer. Prior 
to a change-out or upgrade, the facility operator shall submit an acoustical 
report prepared by an acoustical engineer if the replacement generator is not a 
Polar Power, Inc. Model 8340Y-3TNV88-001 15 kW diesel generator equipped 
with an 88-25-0603 enclosure. (BUILDING, PLANNING, ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES) 

 
8. Validity 
 

a. This approval shall expire in two years from the date of approval unless prior to 
that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension has been 
granted. 

 
b. This approval shall not be considered valid and approved unless and until the 

concurrent design review application, DR2014-0014, has been approved. 
(PLANNING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Gregg McKenzie, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 2-2-16\03 Verizon on Pacific Street PC Reso 
U2014-0008 (2-2-16) - final.doc 

Packet Pg. 158

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. PC-2016- 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Refer to Exhibit A of the concurrent Design Review (DR2014-0014) 
 

Available at the Economic and Community Development Department, Planning Division 
 
 

Packet Pg. 159

Agenda Item #8.b.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2016- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW TO INSTALL A WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 

 
(Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 
 
 A. Approval of design review, DR2014-0014, is required to allow the installation of 
wireless communication equipment including 12 panel antennae on a 50-foot tall maximum 
tower and the construction of an equipment enclosure at 4335 Pacific Street. APN 045-021-009. 
 

B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this project via Planning 
Commission Resolution No. PC-2016-__. 
 
 C. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, natural 
features, and constraints. 
 
 D. The height, bulk, area, color scheme, and materials of the structures are 
compatible with surrounding development. 
 
 E. The ingress and egress traffic patterns, is compatible with the surrounding 
development and the public street patterns. 
 
 F. The design of the site and structures is consistent with the goals, policies, and 
land use designations in the General Plan and with all zoning standards, regulations, and 
restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
 Section 2. The design review for the (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-
0014) as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is 
hereby approved subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern 
the design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element 
incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other plans, 
specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable 
to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval.  
Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant/developer shall be solely responsible for 
satisfying each condition and the conditions must be satisfied prior to issuance of the building 
permit, or final inspection as determined by the Director of Economic and Community 
Development.  
 

Packet Pg. 160

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 2 of  
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government Code 
§66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the date of 
approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of the 
fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other exaction contained in this 
notice, complying with all the requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be 
legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions 
 
1. Utilities 
 

All utilities, including but not limited to, telephone and electricity shall be provided to 
the project in compliance with all applicable standards and requirements of the 
applicable provider. (AT&T, PG&E) 

 
2. Tower Design and RF/EMF Compliance 

 
a. Consistent with Exhibit A, the antennae shall be mounted on and completely 

screened by a simulated water tower or other visually appealing structure. The 
maximum overall height of the structure shall not exceed 50 feet. Prior to the 
submission for a building permit, the final design of the tower shall be approved 
by the Economic and Community Development Director. (PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
b. The applicant/developer shall submit a revised radio frequency electromagnetic 

field analysis for a 50-foot tall facility with antennae mounted at the appropriate 
height. The report shall be reviewed and approved by the Economic and 
Community Development Director and the Environmental Services Manager, 
prior to the issuance of a building permit for any part of the proposed facility. 
The FCC public exposure limits must be met for the current and potential 
building heights and land uses, as known at the time of the facility submitting for 
a building permit. (PLANNING, BUILDING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES) 

Packet Pg. 161

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 3 of  
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

 
3. Equipment Enclosure 
 

The following conditions shall be reflected in the plans submitted for the building permit 
for the project and shall be met prior to receipt of a certificate of occupancy, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director: (PLANNING, 
BUILDING) 

 
a. The materials and colors of the equipment enclosure wall including the split-face 

CMU, decorative cap, and metal gate shall complement each other and be 
neutral colors to blend with the surrounding architecture. The wall and gate shall 
be eight feet tall. 
 

b. The enclosure gate shall be solid and view obstructing, and constructed of metal. 
 

4. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the applicant/developer shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to indemnify, 
defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, 
void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the City’s Planning Commission or City 
Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for in Section 66499.37 
of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, 
action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or 
proceeding. Unless waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, 
implementation, plan checking or inspections related to the entitlement shall be 
performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed within 30 
days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
5. Validity 

 
a. This approval shall expire in two years from the date of approval unless prior to 

that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension has been 
granted. 
 

b. This approval shall not be considered valid and approved unless and until the 
concurrent use permit application, U2014-0008, has been approved. 

 
 
  

Packet Pg. 162

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 4 of  
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
 
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Gregg McKenzie, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Secretary 
 
 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Verizon Wireless on Pacific\Meeting Packets\PC 2-2-16\04 Verizon on Pacific 
Street PC Reso DR2014-0014 (2-2-16) - final.doc

Packet Pg. 163

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. PC-2016- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 
 
 

Design Review Documents are available at the Community Development Department 
 

 

Packet Pg. 164

Agenda Item #8.c.



295 Parkshore Drive, Folsom, CA 95630 15
20

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A 
95

81
5

91
6-

56
7-

96
30

w
w

w
.M

ST
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

P
acket P

g. 1
6

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2014-0014



P
acket P

g. 1
6

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



15
20

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A 
95

81
5

91
6-

56
7-

96
30

w
w

w
.M

ST
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

P
acket P

g. 1
6

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



15
20

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A 
95

81
5

91
6-

56
7-

96
30

w
w

w
.M

ST
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

P
acket P

g. 1
6

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



15
20

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A 
95

81
5

91
6-

56
7-

96
30

w
w

w
.M

ST
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

P
acket P

g. 1
6

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



15
20

 R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, C

A 
95

81
5

91
6-

56
7-

96
30

w
w

w
.M

ST
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s.

co
m

P
acket P

g. 1
7

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.c.



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

CENTER AT SECRET RAVINE – ONE-YEAR TIME EXTENSION OF A 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL-2016-0001 

 
 

February 2, 2016 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposal/Application Request 

This application is a request for approval of a one-year extension of time for the 
previously approved project:  

Center at Secret Ravine (DL-2009-03) – A tentative parcel map to allow the subdivision 
of 4.9 ± acres into 4 lots. 
 
Staff Findings 

Staff finds the proposed project, subject to the recommended conditions of approval, 
consistent with the existing General Plan designation and zoning; and further finds the 
proposed subdivision to be compatible with existing and anticipated development of 
surrounding designated properties.  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the following:  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (CENTER AT SECRET RAVINE TIME 
EXTENSION / DL2016-0001) 

 

Discussion  

The City Council approved the tentative parcel map (DL-2009-03) on October 11, 2011 
along with Design Review (DR-2009-02), Use Permit (U-2009-02), Oak Tree Preservation 
Plan Permit (TRE-2009-05), General Development Plan (PDG-2009-01) entitlements and 
a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts.  A Shell Gas Station has 
since been approved and constructed on the site, but the tentative parcel map has not 
yet been recorded.   

Packet Pg. 172

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Center at Secret Ravine Time Extension 
February 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 
The project has benefited from one automatic time extension granted by the State 
through AB116, which extended the expiration date to 2015. This is the first application 
for a time extension submitted for this project. The project is eligible for up to four 
additional one-year time extensions under the provisions of State Law and the Rocklin 
Municipal Code.   

 

Owner/Applicant 

The property owner and applicant is Rocklin Holdings, LP.  

 

General Site Information 

The proposed project site is generally located on the southeast corner of Sierra College 
Boulevard and Schriber Way.  The Assessor’s Parcel Number is 045-053-067. 

Location Map 

 
 

 

 

 

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 173

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Center at Secret Ravine Time Extension 
February 2, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Environmental  

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by 
the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2011-144; the requested time extension 
does not result in any environmental impacts beyond those that were previously 
identified.  

 

Attachments 
Attachment A – City Council Resolution 2011-146 approved October 11, 2011. 
 
 
Prepared by Jeffrey Tsumura, Assistant Planner 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Center at Secret Ravine DL Time Extension\Meeting Packets\1 - Center at Secret 
Ravine SR - draft 011216.doc 

Packet Pg. 174

Agenda Item #9.



Attachment A

Packet Pg. 175

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 176

Agenda Item #9.



Packet Pg. 177

Agenda Item #9.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
ONE-YEAR TIME EXTENSION OF A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

(Center at Secret Ravine Time Extension / DL2016-0001) 
 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 
 

A. Tentative Parcel Map (DL-2009-03) allows the subdivision of 4.9+ acres into 
4 lots. 
 

B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration of environmental impacts prepared for 
this project has been approved via City Council Resolution No. 2011-144. 
 

C. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of this 
subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs against 
the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental 
resources. 

 
D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the zoning classification on the property. 
 
E. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs 
in the City of Rocklin's General Plan. 

 
F. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of 

development. 
 
G. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements are not 

likely to cause substantial environmental damage, nor will they substantially and 
avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

 
H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not cause 

serious public health problems. 
 
 
I.  The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict 

with easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

Packet Pg. 179

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 2  
Reso. No.  
 

 
J.  The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future 

passive or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 
 

 Section 2.  The one-year extension of time for the Center at Secret Ravine tentative 
parcel map (DL2016-0001) as depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein, is hereby approved, subject to the terms and conditions 
in the previous approval.  The approved Exhibit A shall govern the design and 
construction of the project.  Any condition directly addressing an element incorporated 
into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A.  All other plans, 
specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically 
applicable to the project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the 
conditions for approval.  Unless otherwise expressly stated, the applicant / developer 
shall be solely responsible for satisfying each condition, and each of these conditions 
must be satisfied prior to or concurrently with the submittal of the final map with the 
City Engineer.  The agency and / or City department(s) responsible for ensuring 
implementation of each condition is indicated in parenthesis with each condition. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to 
Government Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the 
amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other 
exactions. 

The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from 
the date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or 
other exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of 
Government Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later 
challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions 
 
1. Reciprocal Easements 
 

A reciprocal access and parking easement (as may be evidenced by a note on 
the final map), or its legal equivalent in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, 
shall be recorded over and between each of the parcels in the subdivision 
concurrent with the recording of the final map. (CITY ATTORNEY, 
ENGINEERING) 

 
2. Street Dedication 

 

Packet Pg. 180

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 3  
Reso. No.  
 

The areas indicated as “Proposed 1.35 ac. ROW Dedication under separate 
instrument” and “Proposed 0.34 ac. ROW Dedication under separate 
instrument” on Exhibit A, which is required right-of-way for public street 
improvements shall have been offered to the City of Rocklin via irreversible 
offer of dedication (IOD), by separate instrument concurrently with or prior to, 
the final parcel map. (ENGINEERING)   
 

3. Validity 
 
a. This tentative parcel map shall expire one year from the date of approval 

unless prior to that date all final maps have been recorded or an additional 
time extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
         ____________________________________ 
         Gregg McKenzie, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Center at Secret Ravine DL Time Extension\Meeting Packets\3 - Center at Secret 
Ravine DL Reso.docx

Packet Pg. 181

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No.  
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Available at the Economic and Community Development Department, Planning Division 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 182

Agenda Item #9.a.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.a.



 
 

City of Rocklin Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension 
Conditional Use Permit, U-2016-0001 

 
February 2, 2016 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
ONE-YEAR TIME EXTENSION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U-2013-03, (PC-2013-65) 
TO ALLOW THE CONVERSION OF THE ROCKLIN PARK HOTEL FOR THE OPERATION OF A 
SENIOR LIVING FACILITY (Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension / U2016-0001) 
 
Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a one-year time extension of a previously 
approved Conditional Use Permit, U-2013-03, which allows for the conversion of the 
existing Rocklin Park Hotel to operate as a senior living facility, including independent 
and assisted living.  
 
Location 
 
The subject property is located at 5450 China Garden Road, approximately 0.35 miles 
from the intersection of Aguilar Road and China Garden Road. APN 045-110-067. 
 

Packet Pg. 184

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Park Senior Living CUP Time Extension 
February 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

Vicinity Map 
 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The property owner and the applicant is Omkar Rocklin, Inc. 
 
Background and Site Characteristics 
 
The Planning Commission approved a conditional use permit (U-2013-03) allowing for 
conversion of the Rocklin Park Hotel and the operation of a senior living facility on 
December 3, 2013 via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2013-65.  The original 
project scope included the conversion of the interior of the existing hotel and associated 
grounds from a hotel to a senior independent and assisted living facility.  No exterior 
building or site modifications were originally proposed; therefore, a Design Review 
entitlement was not necessary. 
 
A Conditional Use Permit Modification and Design Review are currently being processed 
under a separate application to obtain approval for an additional 10,167-square-foot 
memory care building and the conversion of the existing outdoor pool area to an 
enclosed kitchen and dining area.  This application will be brought to the Planning 
Commission at a future date. 
 
The applicant is requesting a one-year time extension to the original Conditional Use 
Permit to allow for the time needed to process the new project entitlements. 
 

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 185

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Park Senior Living CUP Time Extension 
February 2, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The project was previously determined to be exempt pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines through Planning Commission Resolution 
PC-2013-64; the requested time extension is within the scope of the prior CEQA exempt 
determination.   
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) and the underlying 
General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC). The proposed senior community 
(independent and assisted living care facility) is considered acceptable upon approval of 
a conditional use permit. Staff reviewed the proposed project and found that it is 
consistent with both the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Based on the analysis presented above, Staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve a 12-month time extension as requested. 
 
 
Attachment A – Rocklin Park Senior Living PC Staff Report from December 3, 2013 
Attachment B – Rocklin Park Senior Living Resolution PC-2013-65 (U-2013-03) 
 
 
Prepared by Jeff Tsumura, Assistant Planner 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension\Meeting Packets\1 - Rocklin Park Senior 
Living Time Extension SR - Final.docx

Packet Pg. 186

Agenda Item #10.



 
 

City of Rocklin Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Rocklin Park Senior Living 
Conditional Use Permit, U-2013-03 

 
December 3, 2013 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Subject to the recommended conditions of approval, Staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION (Rocklin Park Senior Living / U-2013-03) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW THE CONVERSION OF THE ROCKLIN PARK HOTEL 
AND FOR THE OPERATION OF A SENIOR LIVING FACILITY IN A PD-C ZONE (Rocklin Park 
Senior Living / U-2013-03) 
 
Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to convert the 
existing Rocklin Park Hotel and operate a senior living facility, including independent 
and assisted living.  
 
Location 
 
The subject property is located at 5450 China Garden Road, approximately 0.35 miles 
from the intersection of Aguilar Road and China Garden Road. APN 045-110-067. 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 187

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Rocklin Park Senior Living 
December 3, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Vicinity Map 

 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The property owner and the applicant is Omkar Rocklin, Inc. 
 
Background and Site Characteristics 
 
The subject property is approximately 8.9 acres and is developed as the Rocklin Park 
Hotel, including the hotel building, restaurant, swimming pool, landscaped grounds, 
and parking lot. The Hotel was first approved as the Stutz Bakery and Guesthouse via 
SPU-94-01 by the Planning Commission in March, 1994 (PC-94-10). Rocklin Park Hotel 
was subsequently expanded and modified (SPU-97-32) via City Council resolution 98-
253 approved in August, 1998 and via Planning Commission resolution PC-99-72 
approved in August, 1999. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses 
 

 Use General Plan / Zoning 
Project Site Hotel Retail Commercial (RC) / Planned Development 

Commercial (PD-C) 

West/ 
Northwest/ 
North 

Interstate 80 Caltrans right-of-way 

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 188

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Rocklin Park Senior Living 
December 3, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 

Northeast Vacant Retail Commercial (RC) / Planned Development 
Commercial (PD-C) 

East / 
Southeast/ 
South 

Single Family 
Residential 

Medium High Density Residential (MDR) / 
Planned Development 4 units per acre (PD-4) 

Southwest Vacant Retail Commercial (RC) / Planned Development 
Commercial (PD-C) 

 
Environmental Determination 
 
The project is exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15060 (c)(2), the activity (project) is 
not subject to CEQA if the activity will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable 
indirect physical change in the environment. In addition, the project is categorically 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301 – Existing Facilities. For a more in-depth 
discussion of the environmental evaluation and conclusion, please refer to the Notice of 
Exemption attached to the Resolution approving said exemption. 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) and the underlying 
General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC). The proposed senior community 
(independent and assisted living care facility) is considered acceptable upon approval of 
a conditional use permit. Staff reviewed the proposed project and found that it is 
consistent with both the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 
Use Permit (U-2013-03) / Compatibility with Adjoining Land Uses 
 
The proposed project would convert the interior of the existing approximately 49,250 
square foot hotel and associated grounds from a hotel to a senior independent and 
assisted living facility. No changes are to be made to the exterior of the building or to 
the grounds; therefore a Design Review entitlement is not necessary. See Attachment 1 
to the staff report for photographs of the existing hotel. The main two-story portion of 
the building would house a lobby and common areas, operational and administrative 
spaces, and 67 living units. The existing restaurant area would be converted to a lobby, 
library, great room, and dining room with operational areas beyond the existing 
kitchen. The facility includes the use of the existing swimming pool and outdoor 
landscape and activity areas for residents and their guests. 
 
In a Planned Development Commercial zone, a community/residential care facility is 
considered a permitted use subject to the approval of a conditional use permit. Staff 

Packet Pg. 189

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Rocklin Park Senior Living 
December 3, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 
analyzed the proposed facility and found that, with the recommended conditions of 
approval, its operation will be compatible with existing adjacent uses and the zoning of 
surrounding vacant properties. Existing surrounding land uses include single family to 
the east, southeast, and south. The senior living facility is considered to be a less 
intense use than the existing hotel. 
 
To ensure that the facility does not generate an excessive number of Emergency 
Medical Aid service calls and/or that the facility would reimburse the City for excessive 
calls for service should they occur, the draft resolution also contains an excessive 
emergency response condition that is similar to conditions that have been placed on 
other senior care facilities such as Sunrise Senior Living and more recently, Bella Vida 
Senior Citizen Independent Living Complex approved by City Council on May 14, 2013. 
 
Parking 
The City of Rocklin’s Zoning Ordinance contains off-street parking standards for various 
types of development but does not include a standard for age-restricted apartments. 
The standard parking requirements for apartments require 1.5 spaces per one bedroom 
unit plus 25% visitor spaces, and 2.0 spaces per two or more bedroom units plus 25% 
visitor spaces. Historically, age-restricted projects like Villa Serena at Park Drive, Sunrise 
Assisted Living on Sierra College Boulevard, and most recently, Bella Vida on Pacific 
Street requested and had approved parking ratios that are less than the City standard 
for apartments. The Villa Serena project used a parking ratio of 1.17 spaces per unit; 
Sunrise Assisted Living was approved with 0.50 space per bed (which equates to 0.61 
spaces per unit); and the Bella Vida project was approved with a parking ratio of 0.75 
spaces per unit. 
 
The project provides a total of 168 existing parking spaces: 162 standard and 6 ADA 
accessible, for the 67 unit facility, which equates to a 2.5 space per unit parking ratio. If 
all units were to have double occupancy, which is unlikely, the facility would house 134 
residents. At 134 beds, the parking ratio is 1.25 spaces per bed. Because the facility was 
designed originally as a hotel, the project has more parking than has typically been 
provided and approved for other senior projects.  
 
In addition, the facility will provide a shuttle van seven days a week for local trips. 
Placer County Dial-a-Ride is also available and offers curb to curb service Monday 
through Saturday. 
 
Signage 
It is staff’s understanding that the applicant intends to utilize the existing freestanding 
and monument signs on the property and that only a copy change is proposed. Such 
copy changes are allowed under the current sign ordinance without a sign permit.  
 

Packet Pg. 190

Agenda Item #10.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Re:  Rocklin Park Senior Living 
December 3, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 
Based on the analysis presented above, Staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve the proposed entitlements for the Rocklin Park Senior Living 
project as presented and conditioned. 
 
Attachment 1 – Photographs of Existing Rocklin Park Hotel 
 
Prepared by Dara Dungworth, Associate Planner 
 
 
DD/ 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\Dara\__Sunset West Lot 2A\Rocklin Park Senior Living SR (U-2013-03) - final .doc

Packet Pg. 191

Agenda Item #10.



Packet Pg. 192

Agenda Item #10.



Packet Pg. 193

Agenda Item #10.



Packet Pg. 194

Agenda Item #10.



Packet Pg. 195

Agenda Item #10.



Packet Pg. 196

Agenda Item #10.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.

cjohnson
Approved

cjohnson
New Stamp

cjohnson
Typewritten Text
U-2013-03 Exhibit A



P
acket P

g. 1
9

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2016- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
ONE-YEAR TIME EXTENSION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U-2013-03, (PC-2013-65) 
TO ALLOW THE CONVERSION OF THE ROCKLIN PARK HOTEL FOR THE OPERATION OF A 

SENIOR LIVING FACILITY  
 

(Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension / U2016-0001) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 

A. Conditional Use Permit (U-2013-03), approved via Planning Commission 
Resolution No. PC-2013-65, allows for the conversion of an existing hotel and the 
operation of an approximately 67-unit / 49,250-square-foot independent and assisted 
living facility in the PD-C zone on an approximately 8.9 acre site located at 5450 China 
Garden Road, approximately 0.35 miles from the intersection of Aguilar Road and China 
Garden Road. Assessor’s Parcel Number 045-110-067. 
 

B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this project via Planning 
Commission Resolution No. PC-2013-64. 
 
 C. The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the proposed uses 
and buildings or structures will not, under the circumstances of this particular case, be 
detrimental or injurious to the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or 
working within the neighborhood of the proposed use, to property and improvements 
in the neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City. 
 
 D. The establishment, operation, and maintenance of the uses and buildings 
or structures is consistent with the goals, policies, and land use designations in the 
General Plan and with all zoning standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to 
the property. 
 

Section 2. The one-year extension of time for the Rocklin Park Senior Living 
conditional use permit (U-2016-0001 / PC-2013-65),  as depicted and further described 
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is hereby 
approved subject to the  terms and conditions in the previous approval.    Unless 
expressly stated otherwise, the applicant/developer shall be solely responsible for 
satisfying each condition and the conditions must be satisfied prior to issuance of the 
building permit, or issuance of certificate of occupancy as determined by the Economic 
and Community Development Director. The agency and/or City department(s) 

Packet Pg. 200

Agenda Item #10.a.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No. PC-2016- 

 

responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is indicated in parenthesis 
with each condition. 

 
 A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 

 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

 
 B. Conditions 
 
1. Validity 
 

This entitlement (U-2016-0001 / PC-2013-65) shall expire one year from the date 
of approval unless prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time 
extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016, by the following roll call 

vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 
      ____________________________________ 
      Gregg McKenzie, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension\Meeting Packets\RESO 
Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension.docx

Packet Pg. 201

Agenda Item #10.a.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No.  

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Available at the Economic and Community Development Department, Planning Division 

Packet Pg. 202

Agenda Item #10.a.



Packet Pg. 203

Agenda Item #10.a.



Packet Pg. 204

Agenda Item #10.a.



Packet Pg. 205

Agenda Item #10.a.



Packet Pg. 206

Agenda Item #10.a.



Packet Pg. 207

Agenda Item #10.a.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.a.

cjohnson
Approved

cjohnson
New Stamp

cjohnson
Typewritten Text
U-2013-03 Exhibit A



P
acket P

g. 2
0

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.a.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
0

.a.



 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Interested Parties 
 
FROM:   Marc Mondell, Director 
 
RE:    Residential Landscape Templates 
 
COMMENTS: 
 
The enclosed landscape templates are meant to provide guidance for submitting residential 
landscape plans for new construction in compliance with the State’s new Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) which is in effect as of December 1, 2015 (see link).   
 
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/landscapeordinance/ 
 
As indicated in the templates, the City strongly prefers natural turf solutions and provides 
direction in terms of irrigation methods to support turf but will accept alternatives in accord 
with the templates.  Projects located within Whitney Ranch must comply with the Whitney 
Ranch Design Guidelines Manual and not the enclosed templates. 
 
Artificial Turf 
 
The City cannot prohibit artificial turf approaches to landscape design but discourages their 
consideration.  Selection and installation of artificial turf materials and systems shall comply 
with the City’s templates where possible and otherwise be in accord with the guidelines 
promulgated by the Synthetic Turf Council (see link): 
 
http://www.syntheticturfcouncil.org/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact Sherry Palmer, Permit Services Supervisor (916) 625‐5121 if you have any questions 
 

Packet Pg. 211

Agenda Item #11.a.



DESIRABLEUNDESIRABLE

SOLUTIONS

FRONT YARD LANDSCAPE EXAMPLES
CITY OF ROCKLIN
CODES AND DESIGN GUIDELINES
TREE SETBACKS

 6' DISTANCE FROM CONCRETE WALKS AND 7' HEIGHT CLEAR
 10' DISTANCE FROM DRIVEWAYS/FIRE HYDRANTS
 4' DISTANCE FROM UTILITIES

LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

 75% PLANTING COVERAGE IS REQUIRED AT MATURITY.
 ONE TREE PER RESIDENTIAL LOT IS REQUIRED.

FRONT YARD LANDSCAPING DESIGN INTENT

 CREATE ATTRACTIVE STREETSCAPES AND INTEREST USING A VARIETY OF
PLANT SIZES AND TEXTURES.

 CREATE SHADE, SOFTEN HARDSCAPES AND PROVIDE SEASONAL COLOR.
 REDUCE CREATION OF HEAT ISLANDS IN SUBURBAN ENVIRONMENTS.

TURF / GROUNDCOVER FOOTPRINT

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME WATER
USE

TURF

FESTUCA DWARF BONSAI
BLEND HIGH

GROUNDCOVERS

DYMONDIA
MARGARETAE DYMONDIA LOW

LIPPIA NODIFLORA
'KURAPIA' CAPE WEED LOW

BLENDED GRASSES FOR HILLSIDE CONDITIONS ONLY
(NOT FOR USE IN STANDARD FRONT YARDS)

AGROSTIS PALLENS BENTGRASS LOW

FESTUCA RUBRA CREEPING RED
FESCUE MEDIUM

KOELERIA
MACRANTHA JUNE GRASS LOW

NASSELLA CERNUA NODDING
NEEDLEGRASS VERY LOW

NASSELLA PULCHRA PURPLE
NEEDLEGRASS VERY LOW

P
acket P

g. 2
1

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
1

.a.



PORCH

GARAGE

6'
-0
"

TR
EE

SE
TB
AC

K

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION WATER
USE

TREE LOW

3' - 4' TALL SHRUB LOW

2' - 3' TALL SHRUB LOW

12"-18" TALL
ACCENT SHRUB LOW

FLOWERING
GROUNDCOVER LOW

EVERGREEN
GROUNDCOVER LOW

TURF / SOD HIGH

HEADER

WOOD FENCE AND
GATE

CONCRETE

N
NORTHSCALE:  

0 2' 4' 8'

1/4"=1'-0"

PLAN 1 - WATER USE

PLAN 1 - EXAMPLE WITH TURF SCENARIO

WATER USE CALCULATIONS
MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = 0.55 FOR RESIDENTIAL LANDSCAPES
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = PLANT FACTOR / IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ANNUAL EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ETo) RATE:
52.2 = CITY OF ROCKLIN

REGION: ROCKLIN = WUCOLS CENTRAL VALLEY

IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY: 0.81 = PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP
0.75 = STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

PLANT FACTOR*: 0.0 to 0.1 = VERY LOW WATER USE
0.1 to 0.3 = LOW WATER USE
0.4 to 0.6 = MEDIUM WATER USE
0.7 to 1.0 = HIGH WATER USE

*FOR THE PURPOSES OF DEVELOPING WATER USE OPTIONS, THE HIGHEST
PLANT FACTOR HAS BEEN SELECTED FOR SHRUBS, TREES AND
GROUNDCOVER. A PLANT FACTOR OF 0.8 HAS BEEN SELECTED FOR TURF
(BONSAI FESCUE BLEND). FINAL PLANT SELECTION MAY AFFECT CALCULATION
AND WATER USE OUTCOME.

WATER USE CALCULATION FACTORS

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE LOT SIZE = 800 S.F.

LOW WATER USE PLANTS WITH PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP IRRIGATION

HIGH WATER USE TURF WITH LOW FLOW STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

WATER USE CALCULATION:

TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA = 800 S.F. 100%

LOW WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.3) = 600 S.F. 75%
HIGH WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.8) = 200 S.F. 25%

MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA) = 14,240 GALLONS PER YEAR

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU) = 14,100 GALLONS PER YEAR = 99% OF MAWA

PLAN LEGEND

P
acket P

g. 2
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
1

.a.



VISIBILITY TRIANGLE
(30" HT PLANTS, MAXIMUM)

PORCH

GARAGE

GARAGE

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION WATER
USE

TREE LOW

SMALL ACCENT
TREE LOW

4' - 5' TALL SHRUB LOW

3' - 4' TALL SHRUB LOW

12"-18" TALL
ACCENT SHRUB LOW

FLOWERING
GROUNDCOVER LOW

EVERGREEN
GROUNDCOVER LOW

TURF / SOD HIGH

HEADER

WOOD FENCE AND
GATE

CONCRETE

N
NORTHSCALE:  

0

3/16"=1'-0"

30" 5' 10'

PLAN 2 - WATER USE

PLAN 2 - EXAMPLE WITH TURF SCENARIO

WATER USE CALCULATIONS
MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = 0.55 FOR RESIDENTIAL LANDSCAPES
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = PLANT FACTOR / IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ANNUAL EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ETo) RATE:
52.2 = CITY OF ROCKLIN

REGION: ROCKLIN = WUCOLS CENTRAL VALLEY

IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY: 0.81 = PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP
0.75 = STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

PLANT FACTOR*: 0.0 to 0.1 = VERY LOW WATER USE
0.1 to 0.3 = LOW WATER USE
0.4 to 0.6 = MEDIUM WATER USE
0.7 to 1.0 = HIGH WATER USE

*FOR THE PURPOSES OF DEVELOPING WATER USE OPTIONS, THE HIGHEST
PLANT FACTOR HAS BEEN SELECTED. FINAL PLANT SELECTION MAY AFFECT
CALCULATION AND WATER USE OUTCOME.

WATER USE CALCULATION FACTORS

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE LOT SIZE = 800 S.F.

LOW WATER USE PLANTS WITH PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP IRRIGATION

HIGH WATER USE TURF WITH LOW FLOW STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

WATER USE CALCULATION:

TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA = 800 S.F. 100%

LOW WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.3) = 600 S.F. 75%
HIGH WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.8) = 200 S.F. 25%

MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA) = 14,240 GALLONS PER YEAR

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU) = 14,100 GALLONS PER YEAR = 99% OF MAWA

PLAN LEGEND

DESIRABLEUNDESIRABLE

P
acket P

g. 2
1

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
1

.a.



PORCHGARAGE

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION WATER
USE

TREE LOW

4' - 5' TALL SHRUB LOW

2' - 3' TALL SHRUB LOW

12"-18" TALL
ACCENT SHRUB LOW

GROUNDCOVER MEDIUM

WOOD FENCE AND
GATE

CONCRETE

N
NORTHSCALE:  

0 2' 4' 8'

1/4"=1'-0"

PLAN 3 - WATER USE

PLAN 3 - EXAMPLE WITH NO TURF SCENARIO

WATER USE CALCULATIONS
MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = 0.55 FOR RESIDENTIAL LANDSCAPES
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU)

ETo x 0.62 x (ETAF x LANDSCAPE AREA) = GALLONS PER YEAR

ETo = REFERENCE EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (INCHES PER YEAR)
0.62 = CONVERSION FACTOR (TO GALLONS PER SQUARE FOOT)
ETAF = ET ADJUSTMENT FACTOR = PLANT FACTOR / IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY
LANDSCAPE AREA = SQUARE FEET

ANNUAL EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ETo) RATE:
52.2 = CITY OF ROCKLIN

REGION: ROCKLIN = WUCOLS CENTRAL VALLEY

IRRIGATION EFFICIENCY: 0.81 = PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP
0.75 = STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

PLANT FACTOR*: 0.0 to 0.1 = VERY LOW WATER USE
0.1 to 0.3 = LOW WATER USE
0.4 to 0.6 = MEDIUM WATER USE
0.7 to 1.0 = HIGH WATER USE

*FOR THE PURPOSES OF DEVELOPING WATER USE OPTIONS, THE HIGHEST
PLANT FACTOR HAS BEEN SELECTED. FINAL PLANT SELECTION MAY AFFECT
CALCULATION AND WATER USE OUTCOME.

WATER USE CALCULATION FACTORS

TYPICAL LANDSCAPE LOT SIZE = 800 S.F.

LOW WATER USE PLANTS WITH PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIP IRRIGATION

MEDIUM WATER USE PLANTS WITH LOW FLOW STREAM ROTARY SPRAYS

WATER USE CALCULATION:

TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA = 800 S.F. 100%

LOW WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.3) = 475 S.F. 60%
MEDIUM WATER USE AREA (PLANT FACTOR 0.6) = 325 S.F. 40%

MAXIMUM ALLOWED WATER ALLOWANCE (MAWA) = 14,240 GALLONS PER YEAR

ESTIMATED TOTAL WATER USE (ETWU) = 14,100 GALLONS PER YEAR = 99% OF MAWA

PLAN LEGEND

P
acket P

g. 2
1

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
1

.a.



SUB-SURFACE DRIP IRRIGATION

TREES
CEDRUS DEODARA DEODAR CEDAR
CERCIS OCCIDENTALIS WESTERN REDBUD
CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS COMMON HACKBERRY
JUNIPERUS JUNIPER
LAURUS NOBILIS SWEET BAY
LEPTOSPERMUM  LAEVIGATUM AUSTRALIAN TEA TREE
MELALEUCA FLAX LEAF PAPER BARK
OLEA OLIVE
PINUS PINE
PISTACIA CHINENSIS CHINESE PISTACHE
PRUNUS CAROLINIANA CAROLINA LAUREL CHERRY
QUERCUS OAK
RHAPHIOLEPIS 'MAJESTIC INDIAN HAWTHORN
BEAUTY'

SHRUBS
ACACIA ACACIA
ARCTOSTAPHYLOS MANZANITA
ARTEMISIA CALIFORNIA SAGEBRUSH
BACCHARIS DWARF COYOTE BRUSH
CALLISTEMON 'LITTLE JOHN' LITTLE JOHN BOTTLEBRUSH
CEANOTHUS CEANOTHUS
CISTUS ROCKROSE
GREVILLEA GREVILLEA
JUNIPERUS JUNIPER
LAVANDULA LAVENDER
LEPTOSPERMUM AUSTRALIAN TEA TREE
LIGUSTRUM JAPANESE PRIVET
MYRTUS COMMUNIS MYRTLE
NANDINA DOMESTICA HEAVENLY BAMBOO
PINUS MUGO MUGO PINE
RIBES CHAPARRAL CURRENT
ROSMARINUS ROSEMARY
SALVIA SAGE
XYLOSMA SHINY XYLOSMA

GROUNDCOVER
ACACIA ACACIA
BACCHARIS DWARF COYOTE BRUSH
COTONEASTER DAMMERI BEARBERRY COTONEASTER
'LOWFAST'
JUNIPERUS JUNIPER
LANTANA HYBRIDS LANTANA
LIPPIA NODIFLORA 'KURAPIA' CAPE WEED
OSTEOSPERMUM AFRICAN DAISY
ROSMARINUS ROSEMARY

PERENNIALS & GRASSES
CAREX DIVULSA SEDGE
DIETES FORTNIGHT LILY
FESTUCA CALIFORNICA CALIFORNIA FESCUE
IRIS DOUGLASIANA DOUGLAS IRIS
KNIPHOFIA RED HOT POKER
LIMONIUM VULGARE SEA LAVENDER
PENSTEMON PENSTEMON
PHORMIUM TENAX NEW ZEALAND FLAX
STACHYS LAMB'S EARS
TULBAGHIA SOCIETY GARLIC
VERBENA VERBENA

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

LOW WATER USE PLANTS

TREES
ACER MAPLE
CELTIS SINENSIS CHINESE HACKBERRY
CERCIS CANADENSIS EASTERN REDBUD
CORNUS DOGWOOD
CUPRESSUS CYPRESS
CYCAS REVOLUTA SAGO PALM
FRAXINUS ASH
GINKGO (MALE ONLY) MAINDENHAIR TREE
KOELREUTERIA CHINESE FLAME TREE
LEPTOSPERMUM SCOPARIUM NEW ZEALAND TEA TREE
MAGNOLIA MAGNOLIA
PITTOSPORUM PITTOSPORUM
PODOCARPUS YEW PINE
PYRUS PEAR
ULMUS AMERICANA AMERICAN ELM
ZELKOVA ZELKOVA

SHRUBS
ARCTOSTAPHYLOS EDMUNSII MANZANITA
BERBERIS JAPANESE BARBERRY
BUXUS BOXWOOD
CAMELLIA CAMELLIA
COLEONEMA BREATH OF HEAVEN
COPROSMA MIRROR PLANT
CUPHEA MEXICAN HEATHER
EURYOPS EURYOPS
ILEX HOLLY
JASMINUM JASMINE
LANTANA LANTANA
MAGNOLIA MAGNOLIA
NANDINA DOMESTICA HEAVENLY BAMBOO
OSMANTHUS SWEET OLIVE
PHOTINIA PHOTINIA
PODOCARPUS YEW PINE
PITTOSPORUM PITTOSPORUM
RHAPHIOLEPIS INDIAN HAWTHORN
RHODODENDRON AZALEA
ROSA HYBRIDS BUSH ROSE
SALVIA DORII PURPLE SAGE
VIBURNUM VIBURNUM

GROUNDCOVER
ARCTOSTAPHYLOS MANZANITA
COTONEASTER SPP COTONEASTER
LANTANA CAMARA LANTANA
PELARGONIUM GERANIUM
TRACHELOSPERMUM JASMINE

PERENNIALS & GRASSES
AGAPANTHUS LILY-OF-THE-NILE
CANNA CANNA
CAREX BUCHANANII CURLY TOP SEDGE
DIANTHUS PINK
HEMEROCALLIS DAYLILY
IRIS PACIFIC COAST HYBRIDS PACIFIC COAST HYBRIDS
LIMONIUM PEREZII STATICE
LIRIOPE LILYTURF
PELARGONIUM GERANIUM
PENSTEMON PENSTEMON

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

MEDIUM WATER USE PLANTS

IRRIGATION AND PLANT EXAMPLES

BEST LANDSCAPE PRACTICES
FOR WATER CONSERVATION

POINT SOURCE DRIP IRRIGATION EXAMPLES

CITY OF ROCKLIN

 LANDSCAPE SHOULD NOT BE WATERED DURING THE MONTHS OF DECEMBER,
JANUARY, FEBRUARY AND MARCH.

 WATER ONLY BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 9:00 PM AND 9:00 AM.
 REPAIR IRRIGATION LEAKS PROMPTLY.
 APPLY 3-INCHES OF MULCH AROUND TREES AND PLANTS TO REDUCE EVAPORATION.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

 USE AN IRRIGATION CONTROLLER WITH A RAIN SHUT-OFF DEVICE.
 PERFORM SOILS TEST TO DETERMINE REQUIRED FERTILIZERS.
 GROUP PLANTS IN LIKE WATER USE ZONES (HYDROZONES).
 MINIMUM 8' WIDE PLANTER REQUIRED FOR TRADITIONAL HIGH VOLUME SPRAYS.
 USE 6-INCH DEPTH AND 4-CUBIC YARDS/1000 SF ORGANIC COMPOST IN ALL PLANTERS.

DRIPPER / EMITTER MULTI-OUTLET EMITTER 

BUBBLER 

ECO-MAT DRIP IRRIGATION LOW FLOW STREAM ROTARY

TURF IRRIGATION EXAMPLES

MP ROTATOR W/ 30 PSI OR LESS

P
acket P

g. 2
1

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #1
1

.a.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	a. December 15, 2016
	[12.15.15 PC Minutes.pdf]


	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. APPEAL OF FREESTANDING SIGN APPROVAL 			 Continued from November 3, 2015

FOR ROCKLIN DEL RIO SELF STORAGE



The Yankee Hill Estates Homeowners’ Association has submitted an appeal to the administrative approval of the sign permit for the construction of the new freestanding sign at the northwest corner of Pacific Street and Americana Way for Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage.


	[COMPLETE PACKET - Appeal of Rocklin Del Rio Self Storage Sign SR.pdf]

	8. VERIZON WIRELESS @ PACIFIC STREET  - Continued from December 15, 2015

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0014

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2014-0008



This application is a request for approval of a Design Review and Conditional Use Permit for a new wireless telecommunications facility including 12 panel antennas and associated equipment mounted on a 75-foot tall simulated water tower and tank and a back-up emergency diesel generator.  The subject property is located at 4335 Pacific Street, APN: 045-021-009.  The property is zoned Heavy Industrial (M-2).  The General Plan designation is Heavy Industrial (HI).



A preliminary review of this project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303 New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures has tentatively identified a Categorical Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review for this project.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes.



The applicant is Sacramento Valley Limited Partnership DBA Verizon Wireless. The property owner is Road Safety, Inc.


	[01 Verizon on Pacific PC 2-2-16 Revisions Cover Memo - final COMPLETE.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Notice of Exemption (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014 and U2014-0008)
	[02 Verizon on Pacific Street NOE and Reso 15303 (2016) - final.pdf]

	b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Conditional Use Permit to Allow the Operation of a Wireless Telecommunications Facility (Verizon Wireless On Pacific Street / U2014-0008)
	[03 Verizon on Pacific Street PC Reso U2014-0008 (2-2-16) - final.pdf]

	c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a Design Review to Install a Wireless Telecommunications Facility (Verizon Wireless on Pacific Street / DR2014-0014)
	[04 Verizon on Pacific Street PC Reso DR2014-0014 (2-2-16) - final.pdf]
	[04a Verizon on Pacific Street Exhibit A DR2014-0014 (2-2-16) 11x17.pdf]


	9. CENTER AT SECRET RAVINE TIME EXTENSION

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL-2016-0001



This application is a request for approval of a one-year extension of time for the previously approved project: 



Center at Secret Ravine (DL-2009-03) – A tentative parcel map to allow the subdivision of 4.986 ± acres into 4 lots. 



The proposed project site is generally located on the east side of Sierra College Boulevard, approximately 700 feet south of intersection/interchange of Sierra College Boulevard and Interstate 80, in the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Number is 045-053-067.



A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2011-144. 



The property owner and applicant is Rocklin Holdings, LP.


	[1 - Center at Secret Ravine SR - final.pdf]
	[2 - Attachment A CC Reso 2011-146a.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a One-Year Extension of a Tentative Parcel Map (Center at Secret Ravine Time Extension / Dl2016-0001)
	[3 - Center at Secret Ravine DL Reso.pdf]
	[3a - Exhibit A PC DL-2009-03.pdf]


	10. ROCKLIN PARK SENIOR LIVING TIME EXTENSION

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U-2016-0001



This application is a request for approval of a one-year time extension of a Conditional Use Permit (U-2013-03) to convert the existing Rocklin Park Hotel and operate a senior living facility, including independent and assisted living in a Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) zone. 



The subject property is located at 5450 China Garden Road, approximately 0.35 miles from the intersection of Aguilar Road and China Garden Road. APN 045-110-067.



The project was previously found to be categorically exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines through resolution PC-2013-64.  



The property owner and the applicant is Omkar Rocklin, Inc.


	[1 - Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension SR - COMPLETE.pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Approving a One-Year Time Extension of a Conditional Use Permit to Allow the Conversion of the Rocklin Park Hotel Into and For the Operation of a Senior Living Facility in a PD-C Zone (Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension / U2016-0001)
	[4 - RESO Rocklin Park Senior Living Time Extension Reso - final.pdf]
	[4a - Exhibit A - PC Reso PC-2013-65 (U-2013-03).pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	11. Informational Items and Presentations
	a. Final Landscape Templates
	[Landscape Template Memorandum 01-15-16.pdf]


	12. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	13. Reports from City Staff
	14. Adjournment


